
In of death, resgination officer designated contact reported lo the Commission within thirty (30) calendar days from 
occurrence ihereof with information and complete contact details of the new contact person vs::;:,i;.iicnl:lu. 
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT,$ RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The management of Megawide Construction Corp. and its subsidiaries is 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for 
the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Megawide Construction Corporation and Subsidiaries 
(A Subsidiary of Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 
2nd Floor Spring Building 
Arnaiz Avenue Corner P. Burgos St. 
Pasay City 

Punongbayan & Araullo 
20th Floor, Tower 1 
The Enterprise Center 
6766 Ayala Avenue 
1200 Makoti City 
Philippines 

T +63 2 988 2288 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Megawide Construction Corporation 
and Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position 
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and 
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31 , 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion , the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017 
and 2016, and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 31 , 2017 in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our 
responsibil ities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the 
Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requ irements that are relevant to our 
audits of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requ irements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe thaMhe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

Offices in Cavite, Cebu, Davao 
BOA/PRC Cert of Reg. No. 0002 
SEC Accreditation No. 0002-FR-4 

gran t tho rnto n .com.p h 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period . These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our 
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How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit 

Our audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to revenue 
recognition of construction contracts, which was considered to be a significant risk, 

~ 

s i g n U p d g  

contrastj;
0 Tc 1.45-36.685419 6c 2.or �c 20.0144 T5 2.145 2 Td
(~ )TTes 

risknamely:
-0.09.6061 0 0 -9.6 313.62647423.975 056d
(the edure )
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(c) Recoverability of Past Due Receivables 

Description of the Matter 

The Group has past due receivables (i.e., more than one year) from certain third parties, which 
represent 6% of the Group's total contract and retention receivables arising from construction 
operations as of December 31 , 2017. The Group evaluates these accounts based on available 
facts and circumstances affecting the counterparties. In our view, this matter is sign ificant to 
our audit as it involves significant management judgm
0.0161 Tc 2.sreBDC  Tc 4.996 0 Td
(management )Tj
0.9nc 0.544 0 Td
4rej
0.20.353 rge7 Tc -9.4463 0 0 -9.6 252.9801 0.9nc 0.5
-0D0.1860 Td
(jis )Tj
0.0188 Tc1j
-0.a-. rg
0 Tc35 Tc 2.24.1860 Td
(7matter . rg
-584olvc39(significant )Tj
0.0268 Tc 0.353 .a-. rg
0 Tc35 j
0.021 0 -0.0070.353 rg
0 Tc 1.208 )Tj
0.019227 Tc 16 Tm
(our )66 Tm
(In )Tj
0.0286 Tc -9.696 0 Td
(manage
t )Tj

0 Tc 1.208 receiv222les 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(A Subsidiary of Cidcore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos) 

Notes 2017 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 p 4,930,939,177 p 

Trade and other receivables net 6 6,527,752,500 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 7 3,209,481,581 
Construction materials 8 577,294,069 
Costs in excess of billings on 

uncompleted contracts 9 2,095,587,099 
Other current assets 12 1,358,089,942 

Total Current Assets 18,699,144,368 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Available-for-sale financial assets 10 933,317,631 
Investments in associates and joint venture 11 1,104,218,566 
Concession assets 13 25,608,295,463 
Property, plant and equipment net 14 5,218,064,265 
Investment properties 135,610,000 
Deferred tax assets - net 24 

Other non-current assets 12 2,719,165,512 

Total Non-current Assets 35,718,671,437 

TOTAL ASSETS p 54,417,815,805 p 

2016 

6,265,285,131 
4,929,489,405 

4,673,051,661 
451,306,702 

3,014,946,269 
1,637,230,252 

20,971,309,420 

932,580,830 
896,612,177 

20,338,717,871 
5,267,044,181 

34,045,976 
2,644,244,383 

30,113,245,418 
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Notes 2017 2016 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 



MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(A Subsidiary of Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015 
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos) 

Notes 2017 2016 

REVENUES 19 
Contract revenues p 16,712,638,593 p 15,786,162,784 201Tm di9CNo 162,784 Pes01 29410.086,162,784,871,enu,801.2501 92.7801 Tm (201Tm di9CNo 162,784 8014.686.1084 )Tj 08rporTc 3.978 218d (rev477294)Tj merchandis ETc 3.978 248d (r61 T7iary )Toperationsc 3.978 006d (Pes66 294)Tj /T1_4 1 Tf 0 Tc -3 Tc -7.4000 Td (r7.4001 260.4201 175.951. (p64556,162,78448,099,539c -7.39951 Td (I-1.01 1- Tm 24)Tj 19,159,143,07 8f 0.0153 Tc -7 0 001 3175.02 175.9401 Tm (217)Tj 0.049113 658,141,071Tf 0.05 Tc -7.742 0 0 -7.4001 T513.7601 165.8601572.7809o 162,)Tj -IRECe68.4001 T52ev487.742 007 8f 0.0153 Tc -7 0T513.7601 165 82.8801 Te2 658278 0.049113 658,141,09o3.7 0T513.760tes )Tj 20,5 Tc -7.3995 0 06.2785141,09o3.0401 T3.760tes 115477294r7.4001 260.4201 175601 T35.938556,16237420.02,140,07 8f 0.0153 Tc -7 . 0 -7 175.02 175.9019 r7.4001 260.4201 1750.70tra3 97.30Tj 0.0168,426,343 1 Tf 0.0153 Tc -7 060 -7 175.02 175.3(10tes 3 9722)Tj 0.0144,426,38,801.2501 371 0 0 -7.3001 502.99 175.711731 137.8201 T,162Other4 1 Tf.073200 0 .88v4idiarynet 1 Tf 0 Tc -3 Tc -7.4100 Td (r7.4001 260.4201 174.42 137010.086,16257.027,98,890Tf 0.0153 Tc -7 042 -7 175.02 175.31-730 137010.086,16274,378,850 1 Tf 0.05 Tc -7 -7.4 T52ev487.742 007 8f 0.01251-730 133 1-7)Tj 0.0595,862,603 1 Tf 0.0153 Tc -T52e(106126 294)_3 1 Tf3.9354 -7 175.02 175.3(1801 T43 (1 -7  0.037.2146,686_3 1 Tf 0.05 Tc -7.742 0 0 -7545861 350.83 92.51(2151 14531 )Tj /T1_PROFIT539c --754861 350.83 92.53 T3844531 )Tj /T1_BEFORE67 0 0 -385141,09o83 92.4 4802tra4531 )Tj /T1_TAX539c -7.30900 Td (r7.4001 260.4201 1756017tra4531 )Tj /T1_2,826,858,399890Tf 0.0153 Tc -7 031 -7 175.02 175.90102tra45319 

r7.4001 260.4201 175604024.883 

r7.4001 260.4201 1775.8a535722r7.4001 260.4201 1775.8a568(1 -7  0.0p539c -7.30900 Td27699 -7.2402 24)1,987,80,1009539c  0.0453 Tc -T52e0689



MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(A Subsidiary ofCiticore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOFCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015 

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos) 

Notes 2017 2016 

NET PROFIT p 2,247,809,009 p 1,919,695,740 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Item that will be reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss 

Unrealized gain Ooss) on fair value changes of 

available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 10 8,263,159 70,963,642) 

Realized loss on sale of AFS financial asset 10 70,963,642 

79,226,801 70,963,642) 

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of post-employment 

defined benefit plan 22 21,711,134) 22,452,017) 

Tax income (expense) 24 

to 6,513,3
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MEGA WIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(A Subsidiary of Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015 



Balance brought forward 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Repayment of interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Interest paid 
Dividends paid 
Acquisiton of treasury shares 
Reissuance of treasury shares 
Proceeds from investment of non-controlling interest 

Payment of debt and equity issuance cost 

Repayments of amounts due to related parties 

Net Cash From Financing Activities 

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHA..NGES 
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUNALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS 
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUN ALENTS 
AT 

pebt IN p146 Tc315.90013 -1315.9002847289401 20301 Tm02,es non(Cash )Tj 0.0378 Tc -6.6 0 0 -6.3 4723180.78809.8 TmI(invelling )Tj 021083 Tc 5932 0 Td (and )Tj 0..035 T150-6770 Ti (Financing )Tj 0.0079 T474.577 0 Td (Activiti:SH )Tj ET BT /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDCj /T3_1 1 Tf 0.05 Tc8850734 0 0 -3.90026776 6342.2601 Tm-2-N 



MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(A Subsidiary of Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Citicore is a company incorporated in the Philippines and is engaged in the business of a 
holding company through buying and holding shares of other companies. The registered 
address of Citicore, which is also its principal 
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b) MCEI 

MCEI was incorporated in 2014 to engage in the development of clean or renewable 
energy sources for power generation. Its registered address, which is also its 
principal place of business, is located at 20 N. Domingo St. Brgy. Valencia, Quezon 
City. 

c) Globemerchants 

Globemerchants was incorporated in the Philippines in 2016, primarily engaged in 
general merchandise operations. Globemerchants registered address, which is also 
its principal place of business, is located at Mactan-Cebu International Airport 
Passenger Terminal Building, Airport Terminal, Lapu-Lapu City. Globemerchants 
started its commercial operations in March 2017. 

On March 15, 2017, the Parent Compan

C0 c 3.055 0 9A.05 Tc -11.1 0.05 THnj 0.0068 Tc 00 ss, 
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h) MCVJV 

MGCJV is an unincorporated joint venture formed in 2014 by the Parent Company 
and GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) PTE Limited- Philippines Branch (GISPL) 
each owning 50% interest and exercising joint control. MGCJV was established to 
provide construction of works for the renovation and expansion of the MClA 
Project and other airport related construction projects of the Group (see Note 11.4). 

i) MWMTI 

MWMTI is a joint venture arrangement formed on February 10, 2015 by the Parent 
Company and WM Property Management, Inc. (Waltermart), both exercising joint 
control to direct the relevant activities of MWMTI (see Note 11.3). The joint 
venture shall undertake the development and implementation of the Southwest 
Integrated Transport System Project (ITS Project) granted by the Philippine 
Government to MWMTI under a Build-Operate-Transfer Agreement 
(BOT Agreement) through the DOTr (see Note 27.4.2). 

The Group's interests in MGCJV and MWMTI are accounted for as joint 
arrangements as the Parent Company exercises joint control over the arrangements' 
relevant activities [see Notes 2.3(c), 3.1(g), 3.1(h), 11.3 and 11.4]. 

j) SSPI 

In 2015, the Parent Company acquired investment in Silay Solar Power, Inc. (SSPI) 
representing 100% of SSPI's issued and outstanding capital stock. In 2016, the 
Parent Company's equity interest was reduced from 100% to 1 % upon acquisition of 
a related party under common ownership. As control is determined to be 
temporary, the Group's equity investment in SSPI is only accounted for at cost [see 
Notes 3.1(g), 3.1(h) and 10]. 

1.3 Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 (including the comparative consolidated financial statements as of 
December 31, 2016 and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015) were 
authorized for issue by the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on March 22, 
2018, as endorsed by its Audit and Compliance Committee. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements are summarized in the succeeding pages. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 





.Annual Improvements to 
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle) 

PFRS12 

- 6-

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities -
Scope Clarification on Disclosure of 
Summarized Financial Information for 
Interests Classified as Held for Sale 

Discussed below and in the succeeding pages are the relevant information about 
these amendments and annual improvements. 

(i) P .AS 7 (Amendments), Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative. The 
amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided to 
users of financial statements about changes in an entity's debt and related 
cash flows (and non-cash changes). They require an entity to provide 
disclosures that enable users to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from 
financing activities. .An entity applies its judgment when determining the 
exact form and content of the disclosures needed to satisfy this requirement. 
Moreover, they suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be when be131 82.32 Tm (when )Tj 1.13cessad09.1p(be131 82.32 T )Tj ET BT32 0.010282.32 3c 279.13cessad09..99 241.6447682.32 T 



- 7-

(iii) Annual improvements to PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle) - PFRS 12 (Amendment), 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Scope Clarification on Disclosure of 
Summarized Financial Information for Interests Classified as Held for Sale. The 
amendment clarifies that the disclosure requirements of PFRS 12 applies to 
interest in other entities classified as held for sale with practical concession in 
the presentation of summarized financial information. The amendment 
states that an entity need not present summarized financial information for 
interests in subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures that are classified as held 
for sale. The amendment did not result in additional or changes in the 
disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group 
has no interest in other entities classified as held for sale. 

(b) Effective Subsequent to 2017 but not Adopted Earfy 

There are new PFRS, amendments, interpretations and annual improvements to 
existing standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2017, which are 
adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant 
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless 
otherwise stated, none 
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In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9 
(2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the 
asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding. 
Moreover, a financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it meets the SPPI 
criterion and is held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All other 
financial assets are measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable election 
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that 
is not held for trading in other comprehensive income. 

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial 
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not 
they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not require 
separation from the host contract. 

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which 
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with 
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires 
changes in the fair value of an entity's own debt instruments caused by 
changes in its own credit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive 
income rather than in profit or loss. 

Based on an assessment of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as at 
December 31, 2017, which has been limited to the facts and circumstances 
existing at that date, management has identified the following areas that are 
expected to be most impacted by the application of PFRS 9 (2014): 

• On classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets, 
management holds most financial assets to collect the associated cash 
flows and is currently assessing the underlying types of cash flows to 
classify financial assets correctly. Management expects all the Group's 
financial assets currently classified as loans and receivables to continue to 
be classified measurement f i n a n c i a l 1  0 . 6 5  6 3 8 . 6 0 5 6 9  0  0 • s a n a g E M C  0 E T  B T   - 1 0 . 9  0  0  - 3 2 8 0 1  T m  ( a n d  ) y  f i n a n c 6 9 0 6 a l 7 2 6 j  - 0 5 3 . > o s w i  - 1 0 . 9  1 2 7  0 T 0  0 5 4 0 1  5 4 1 0 . 9  1 3 7 . 0 9 2 5 2 1 0 1 4 8 2 7 2 6 j  - 0 5 3 . > o s b ( u n d e r l y i 4 1 8 T j  0 5 . 8 2 0 1  T m  ( c l a s s 2 3 5 0  0  - 1 7 2 6 j  - 0 5 3 . > o s m e a s u r 2 . 1 0 3  0  - 1  5 2 5 . 5 0 0 1  0 9  T m  ( c a s h  ) T j 8 8 0 3 9  - 1 7 2 6 j  - 0 5 3 . > o s a t 1 0 3  0 ) T j  )  5 3 8 . 8 2 0 1  T m  ( c l a s s i f 1 7 6 . 7  ) 5 3 7 2 6 j  - 0 5 3 . > o s f a i r o  all 210.27 512 4j6  Tm (as )T131 0c -1726j -053.>oswith10.9 21014f 5.27 5130.4711c -139li3753airo all 21049Tj 08.59 0 0ap0pre1d (2.103 0 -145.27 503792 Tc 3.9ei109r0.9 141.0.9 0 0 -32101 Tm (most 27-059 -1739552853.>osinr9c30.23499(clas.0001 Tm (financ68.61739552853.>osprofit10.9 2100.9 0 0 -26801 Tm (of )Tj95s851739552853.>osoro )Tj 0.09)Tj 05.8201 Tm (class21 423 -1739552853.>oslos 10.9 2100.9 0 0 -26801 Tm (of )T1990191739552853.>osoro )Tj 0.483)Tj 5001 Tm (cash )Tj86039 -1739552853.>osinr9c30.23.27 512 4j648Tm (classif1768991739552853.>oso109r0.9 141.38 525.5001 Tm (cash )T145.9-1739552853.>osc-mprehensiv(underlyi42 525.523-2661c -122  3.9inc-me.l600.9 0 0T0 0540805410.9 137.09356.1415 755s84)53.>osTor9c30.234901 512.0001 Tm (finan33955 755s84)53.>ospre1d (underlyi41 0.01684(al9fi375change )Tju38..483)Tj 687 -10 0ap0in239 T -1451Tj 0Tc139 0 0ap0o109r0.9 141.35)Tj 08.527l9fi375c-mprehensiv(underlyi 525.5001 45)Tm (cash )T141069 755s84)53.>osinc-mel600.9 0v69(cla5.8201 Tm (classj0j 06 755s84)53.>osrequire )Tju38..023cash 
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(vi) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle. Among the 
improvements, only PAS 28 (Amendment), Investment in Associates -
Clarification on Fair Value through Profit or Loss Classification (effective from 
January 1, 2018) is relevant to the Group. The amendment clarifies that the 
option for venture capital organization, mutual funds and other similar 
entities to elect the fair value through profit or loss classification in 
measuring investments in associates and joint ventures shall be made at initial 
recognition, separately for each associate or joint venture. 

Management has initially assessed that this amendment has no material 
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements. 

(vii) PAS 28 (Amendment), Investment in Associates - Long-term Interest in Associates 
and Joint Venture (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendment clarifies 
that the scope exclusion in PFRS 9 (2014) applies only to ownership interests 
accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the amendment further 
clarifies that long term interests in an associate or joint venture - to which 
the equity method is not applied - must be accounted for under PFRS 9 
(2014), which shall also include long term interests that, in substance, form 
part of the entity's net investment in an associate or joint venture. 
Management is currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the 
Group's consolidated financial statements. 

(viii) PFRS 9 (.A.mendment), Financial Instruments - Prepqyment Features with Negative 
Compensation ( effective from January 1, 2019). The amendment clarifies that 
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial 
instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the financial 
assets containing prepayment features s t t h e  attached 
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For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. In particular, the 
distinction between finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions 
of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, are 
substantially the same as those applied in PAS 17. The basic accounting 
mechanics are also similar, but with some different or more explicit guidance 
in few areas. These include variable payments, sub-leases, lease 
modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures. 

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard on the 
Group's consolidated financial statements. 

(x) IFRIC 23, Uncertain"!} over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1, 
2019). The interpretation provides cnt  37.6 Tm (c 0 -10.9 326.137 0des )Tj 0.01Tf -0.035 Tc 209pBT -9.70901 0 Td (Janp7Tj Tm (include )Tj0.9189 0  3.6. )Tj 31 Tca 0 90.0216 Tc 2.70cTc 5.697sc9189 v21 Tc 2.301 0tandar16 0 0 -1vides Tad Tad costs t h e  p r e a s e s ,  t h e  a r e a s .  t h e  T a d  

costs the costs the 
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation, Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates, and 
Interests in Joint Arrangements 

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent 
Company, its subsidiaries, GMCAC, MCEI, I\1LI, MCBVI and Globemerchants and its 
interest in MGCJV, as discussed in Note 1.2, after the elimination of intercompany 
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows relating to transactions between entities under the Group, are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are 
recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate 
impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements are prepared 
for the same reporting period as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting 
principles. 

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, associates, interests in 
joint arrangements and non-controlling interests as follows: 

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has 
control. The Group 

(a642 0 0 -10.8 330.95 icnn09(a6l-10.8.8 0 0 8t2 246.14 Tm (The )Tj 026 " -1.209(  -10.4271 008t2 214y (arrangements )Tj62.05 Tc -11.2286 9 0 -10.8 398.when379.52 Tm320.05 Tc -11.0927 0 0 -10.8 398.it Td (interests )Tj  -1.05 Tc -11.09.8 0 0 -10.8 398.i 366.56 Tm7mpany )Tj 0.038 Tc -1207 0 00.4271 008t2xposed,2 Td (control. )Tj77.05 Tc -10.85)Tj 0 -10.8 398. 4.132 0 TParent subsidia99ting subsidia99ting interests entitimpany for arrangements -1.09 0.036 Tc -1171 99t391 0 230.07 313.28 Tm(Group )Tj 0.043 Tc -1178 00391 0 230.94 366.56 Tements 
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity 
interest in the acquiree over the acquisition-date fair value of identifiable net 
assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the consideration transferred is. less 
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a 
bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain in profit or loss 
(see Note 2.12). 

(b) Investments in Associates 

Associates are those entities over which the Parent Company is able to exert 
significant influence but which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in a joint 
venture. Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and 
subsequently accounted for using the equity method. 

Acquired investment in associates is subject to the purchase method. The 
purchase method involves the recognition of the acquiree' s identifiable assets and 
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded 
in the financial statements prior to acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of 
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Parent Company's share of the 
identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or 
fair value adjustment attributable to the Parent Company's share in the associate 
is included in the amount recognized as investment in an associate. 

All subsequent changes to the ownership interest in the equity of the associates 
are recognized in the Parent Company's carrying amount of the investments. 
Changes resulting from the profit or loss generated by the associates are credited 
or charged against the Equity in net profit (losses) of associates and joint venture 
as part of Others - net account under Other Income (Charges) section in the 
consolidated statement of income. 

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment 
in an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.20). 

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or 
items recognized directly in the associate's equity are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or equity of of  



(c) Interests in Joint Arrangements 

(i) Joint Operation 
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A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint 
control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the 
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint control arises from a contractually 
agreed sharing of control in an arrangement, which exist only when decisions 
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing 
control. For interests in joint operation, the Parent Company recognizes in its 
financia0.8 381i9
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Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled 
entity or items recognized directly in the jointly controlled entity's equity are 
recognized in other comprehensive income or equity of the venturer, as 
applicable. However, when the venturer's share of losses in a joint venture equals 
or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any other unsecured 
receivables, the venturer does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. If the 
jointly controlled entity subsequently reports profits, the venturer resumes 
recognizing its share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the 
accumulated share of losses that has previously not been recognized. 

Distributions received from the jointly controlled entity are accounted for as a 
reduction of the carrying value of the investments. 

(d) Transactions with Non-controlling Interests 

The Group's transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss 
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, that is, as transaction with the 
owners of the Group in their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair 
value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying 
value of the net assets of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Disposals of 
equity investments to non-controlling interests result in gains and losses for the 
Group that are also recognized in equity. 

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in 
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the 
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial 
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained 
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts 
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are 
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. 

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiaries, associates, and joint 
arrangements as presented in N ates 1.2 and 11. 

2.4 Financial Assets 

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
terms of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an 
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the 
definition of equity for it 290422.53s43when10.8 0 0 -101367.6501 495.4401 Tm 2cia935.3422.53s43whencriualia.0343 Tc -35.34 -291.58 600.2001172 0.005
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Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. 
All financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair 
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at 
FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are 
recognized in profit or loss. A more detailed description of the categories of 
financial assets currently relevant to the Group is presented below and in the 
succeeding page. 

(z) Finandal Assets at FVTPL 

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held for 
trading or that meets certain conditions and are designated by the entity to be 
carried at FVPTL upon initial recognition. All derivatives fall into this 
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments. 
Assets in this category are classified as current if they are either held for 
trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months from the end of the 
reporting period. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets ( except derivatives and financial 
instruments originally designated as financial assets at FVTPL) may be 
reclassified out of FVTPL category if they are no longer held for the purpose 
of being sold or repurchased in the near term. 

(ii) LJJans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise 
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debt.9 387.47 4are 
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(iii) AFS Financial Assets 

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either 
designated to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other 
categories of financial assets. They are presented as Available-for-sale 
Financial Assets under Non-current Assets in the consolidated statement of 
financial position unless management intends to dispose of the investment 
within 12 months from the reporting period. The Group's AFS financial 
assets include investments in retail treasury bonds (RTB), golf club shares 
and certain equity investments (see Note 10). 

All financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair 
value. Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income, net of any income tax effects, and are reported as 
part of the Revaluation Reserves account in equity, except for interest and 
dividend income, impairment losses and foreign exchange differences on 
monetary assets, which are recognized in profit or loss. 

When the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, that 
is, when there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
security below its cost, the cumulative fair value gains or losses recognized in 
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and 
is presented as reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive 
income even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. 

(b) Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective 
evidence dere01 T3124 Tc -10.8 85oii.0.8 216.74 2i8 0 Td (signral )Tj 0.03 01 T312366.9201 Tm (other )Tj 0.0440.043r-10 41 Tgnral signral c u m u l a t i v e a t e g o r y 2 4  T c  - 1 3 1 1 6  0  0  - 1 0 . 8  1 0 5 . 4 2 0 1  2  0  - 8 T 4 5 1 8 a e r e c o g n i 0 f 3  0 1  T 3 1 2 3 6 6 . 9 2  - 1 0 . 8  1 5 1 . 8 6 0 1  3 7 9 . g a i 4 5 1 8 a e r e c o g n i  

61set objective 
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(ii) Carried at Fair Value 



-19-

2.5 Construction Materials 

Construction materials are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of construction materials 
includes all costs directly attributable to acquisition such as the purchase price, import 
duties and other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities. 
The net realizable value of construction materials is the current replacement cost. 

2.6 Other Assets 

Other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a t0.96 Tm 03wev(co10.8 474.76 165.16 Tm65Other )Tj 0.01670.7-0.28.8 452.8he are . 8  3 7 7 . 8 0 7 4 T j  0 . 0 9 6 3  0  T d  ( s t  0   ( c o 0 . 8  3 6 9 . 0 3  1 5 1 . 4 6  T 8 6 5 2  0 ) T j  - 1 0 . 8 6  T m 8 . 7 - 0 . 2 8 . 8  4 5 w h e 0 . 8  3 7 7 . 8 0 5 5 5 . 1 4  T m  ( c u r r e n t  ) T j  2 2 4  T c 7 - 0 . 2 8 . 8  4 5 i - 1 0 . 8  7 7 . 3 1  T c  - 1 0 5  0   0  0  - 1 0 . 8  2 2 9 . 7 4 7 1 c  - 1 0 5 9 . 5 8 1  0  T p r o b  - 1 0 . 8  2 9 9 . 0 1  1 3 7 . 9 6  0 . 0 5 a  ) T j  0 . 0 4 2 9  8  T m c 7 - 0 . 2 8 . 8  4 5 - 1 0 . 8  3 4 7 . 1 4  T m  ( t h e  ) T j  0 . 0 1 3 6 T f  c 7 - 0 . 2 8 . 8  4 5 - 1 . 8  3 3 0 . 6 8 3 2 2 4 . 4 6  T m  ( c o n s t r u c t i o n . 9 6 3 8 . 7 - 0 . 2 8 . 8  4 5 f u t u r . 8  1 7 7 . 8 2  1 1  ) T j  - 0 . 3 7  - T c  2 . 4  0  T r c o n o m i c e  f l o w . 8  3 7 7 . 8 5  2 1 8 . 9 6  T m  ( t o  ) T j  - 1 1 . 0 4 1 5  0  0 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 . 9 7  2 1 8 . 9 6  T m  ( t h e  ) T j  0 . 0 3 3  T T m c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 . . 8 9  1 6 5 . 1 4  5 m  ( a n d  ) T j  - 1 0 3 4 6  T 8 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 0  0  - 1 0 . 8  1 1 4  T m  ( a n d  ) T j  - 1 0 2 7 T j  1 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 3 . 1 1  1 5 1 . 4 6  T m  ( t h e  ) T j  0 . 0 2 1 . 8 4 5 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 . . 8 9  1 6 5  0 .  5 3 7 . 9 6  T m  ( p u r c h a s e  ) T 2 j  0 T 1 _ 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 3 d  ( p . 8  2 0 5 . 3 1 0 . 0 5  T 2 . 3 ) T j  0 . 0 5  h 5 9 . 0 5  2 1 8 . 9 6 6  T m 3  T c  5 . 6 a 8  1 7 7 . 8 2  1 1  d . 8  2 9 9 . 0 1  1 3 7 . 9 6  4 7 ( t o  ) T j  - 1 1 . 0 . 0 2 9 1 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 o r 8  3 3 0 . 6 8 3 5 5 1 . 4 6  T m  ( t a x e s  ) T j  0 T c  2 0 4 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 0  - 1 0 . 8  3 6 0 . 8 4  1 6 5 . 1 4  0 . 0 5 a  t a x e s  t a x e s  O t h e r  a s s e t s  taxes a s s e t s  to taxes to the a s s e t s  t h e  t a x e s  a s s e t s  5 9 5 g  0 a s a c q u i 1  l o 3 . j  0 . 0 1 6 2  1 c  - 1 0 . 8 a s s e t s 5 c 3 0 0 2  0 7 - 1 0 . 8  3 3 7 8  4 7 4 c c l T m  3 4 0 . 3 s  d e t e r 5 8  4 7 . 8  3 3 7 8  4 7 4  1 . 1 0 . 3 4 0 . 3 s  a s s e t s  5 9 5 g  0 a s a c m  ( 5 1 5 3 6 9 5  2 1 ) T j  i n 0  3 e . 0 . 0 2 9 1 c 7 4 5 1 0 . 8  3 6 4 0 9 9 4 1 9 j  1 c 3 0 0 9 c 3 6 6 .  T m 3 6 9 5  2 1 0 1  3 6 9 5  2 1 p . 8  2 0 5 . 3 1 0 8 9 . 1  3 6 9 5  2 1 p . 8  2 0 5 . 3 1  T c  7 8 5 3 6 9 5  2 1 d e t e 9 6  . 6 a 8  1 7 7 . A 3 0 0 4 1 _ 3 0 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 6 0 0 6 . 8  3 3 0 . 6 u s i n e s s 2 2 9 . 7 4 7 1 c 1 6 T c  - 1 0 8 9 4 1 3 4 2  0 1 0 i 3 0 . 6 n 1 8  2 7 o 0 w  3 9 t h e 2 1 a s s e t s  5 9 5 g  0 a s a c 4 5 . 9 6  9 9 t h e 2 1 3 9 t h e 2 1 s , t h e 2 1 e 0 . 5 3 0 0 4 1 _ f 2 0 5  2 1 8 . 7 3 1  7 7 . 3 3 0 . 6 s e 2 1 d . 8  2 9  T c  n g .  2 1 c q 3 7 . 3 3 0 d i r e c t l 2 1 a s s e t s 2 4 7 1 9 4 4 2 1 . 4 8 0 . 3 7  . 6 4 ( t o o r 2 1 ) T j  a  ( l o 3  T c  T c c  9 0  3 . 3 4 2  0 a f t .  1 6 4 7 4 4 2 1 . 4 8 0 . 3 7  4 r 9 5  2 1 ) T 1 c 1 2 6 T 4 . 8  0 3 6 0 5 4 i o 6 5 . 3 0 4 4 2 1 . 4 8 0 . 3 7  4  ( a  0 . 0 2 7 i n e s s o a  0 .  8 1 5  4 2 8 . 8  4 5 f u t 3 3 7 . 0 6 4 4 2 1 . 4 8 0 . 3 7  4 w n e r s , t h e 2 1 ) T j l o 3  T c  T c c 0 j  v i d 0 . 0 1 6 4  4 2 9 7 . 5 6 4 4 2 1 . 4 8 0 . 3 7  m e m b e r 2 1 d e t e 9 . 6 s e 2 1 l o 3  T c  T c 7 4 2 T 4 . 8  0  0 . 2 7 a c 7 5 6 5 0 4 4 T c   T m  3 7  3 9 t h e 2 1 l o 3  T c  T c c  9 0  3 . 3 4 2  0 a f t 2 4 9  ( l o 4 4 7  4 4 3 3 6 4  4  0 . 0 2 7 i n e 0 9 m  ) T 4 4  3 0 0  3 . 3 4 2  0 5 8  o  6 . 2 l o 4 4 7  4 4 3 3 6 4  g a i n h e 2 1 l o 3  T m 9 5 g 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 . 6 s e 2 1 2 1 2 9 . 7 2 . 4 6 7 5 c d e t e 4 5 r e 0 . 5 3 0 0 4 1 _ 0 9 3 0 0 4 1 _ 7 T m  ( d e t e 4  9 9 i t a l i z e d . 1 ) T j  / T 1 _ 1  1 2 9 f  a  ( l o 3  T c  T c 7 8 8 0  3 . 3 4 2  1 _ 6 c 0 . 8  1 0 4 4 9  1 0 4 3 3 6 4  2 1 0 . . 5 3 0 0 4 1 _ 6 8 o 3  T c  T c 6  3 . 3 4 2  1 _ 6 c 0 5  1 5 5 4 4 9  1 0 4 3 3 6 4  P r o p e r t y , t h e 2 1 ) T j 0 . 0 1 6 1 6 8  s 4 m  ( d e t e 9 P l a n t t h e 2 1 E T  B T  / S u s p e c t  < < / C o n f  a  > > B D C  i v i t i e 3 0 . 6 n p o 1 5 0 5  3 . 3 4 2  1 _ 6 c 3 7 5 6 T m  4 9  1 0 4 3 3 6 4  3 9 t h e 2 1 ) E M C  i E T  B T  - 0 . 0 3 0 9 6  3 . 3 4 2  1 _ 6 c 3 5 3 . n 0 4 4 9  1 0 4 3 3 6 4  E q u i p m e n t t h e 2 1 / T 1 _ 2  1 2 9 f  a  ( 4 2 0 1 3 6 6 4 7 1 c 1 6 T c  - 1 4 5 1 0 . 0 . 8  s 5  5 n p o s 6 3 3 6 4  P r o p e r t y , t h e 2 1 ) T j 0 8 8 1 6 1 6 8  s 5 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 p l a n t t h e 2 1 T j  o e 3 0 . 6 n 5 f u 0 9 1 6 T c  - 1 4 5 1 0 . 0 0 0 6 5 0 4 5 n p o s 6 3 3 6 4  3 9 t h e 2 1 d e t e 9 5 9 2 1 l o 3  T c  T c c 6 5 7  3 . 3 4 2  0 5 8  o 9 7 T 8 6 5 5 9 T c c 2 2 3 6 4  i n t e n d e t h e 2 1 d e t e 4  4  0 . 0 2 7 i n e 2 2 1 2 9 . 7 1 _ 7 2 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 r e p a i  2 1 4 0 6 2 9 . 7 2 . 4 0 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 o v e  0 . 0 2 7 i n e 4 T l o 3  T 2 . 2 0 0 6 6 . 8  0 3 t h a s s e t s T j  3 0 5 3 0 0 4 1 _ 6 5 8  6 . 8  0 3 e s t i m a  3 3 0 . . 6 b d u - 3 8 4 5  2 1 8  3 4 4  3 . 3 4 2 5 u s a f u l h e 2 1 l o 3  T c  T c 8 9 4 T 4 . 8  0  0 . 2 7 a 1 0 3 . T 5 6 4 4 . T 4  3 6 4  4 0 8 . 6 8 1
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Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost. 
This includes cost of construction of 
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(b) Acquired Computer Software Licenses 

Acquired computer software license (shown as part of Other Non-current 
Assets) is accounted for under the cost model. The cost of the asset is the 
amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other 
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Trade and other payables are initially recognized at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one 
year, less settlement payments. 

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest-bearing Loans and 
Borrowings) are recognized at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if 
lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of the lease 
(see Note 2.18). 

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon 
declaration liab9.92 Tm (lease )Tj 0.7bbutions le 0 Td (lea11 0 0 -11 uTm (if )2r )Tj 0.0124 Tm (if t38 0.778 Tc 4.952dBOD(Obligationm (lower, )Tj 0.0434of ng 8c 4.952dFTd (liabilities )T66Tj 0.713611.3893 0 0 -11 120.6 198.16 Tc 1.590 Td (recognized )Tj 0.05 Tc  0 Td (inliassifi1 219.17 198.08 Tm (a99)Tj 0.0282 T233.3ng 8c 4.952da6.17 94.58 Tm (beyo58j 0.0184 T3 (a93ng 8c 4.952dcurrue )Tj 0-)Tj 0.05 nancial )Tj --4.51ng 8c 4.952d 0 0 -11 120.6 198.08 Tm (up741d )Tj 0.02129. )Tg 8c 4.952d.29 159.92363.05 nancial )Tj -c - Tcg 8c 4.952dTd (at )Tj 0-l e a s m  ( o n e  ) T j  - 0 . 0 0 0 5  j  0 . 0 3 n g 5  - 1 4 - 1 . 2 2 7  T d  ( y e . 2 4  T m  ( B o ( o f 0 1  0  0  - 1 ( l e s T m  ( i f  ) 2 r  ) T j  0 . 0 6 8  ) T j  - 0 . 0 1 4 2 0 6  ) T g 5  - 1 4 - 1 . 2 2 7 r 4 9  1 7 3 . 2 4  T 3 . 0 5  n a n c i a l  ) T j  4 1 d 6  T c g 5  - 1 4 - 1 . 2 2 t t l e m e n t  thestributions2 Tm (of )Tj 0.0457 TC  E9Tg5 -14-1.22735 159.92 Tm (the )Tj 0.0042T2338j g5 -14-1.22esent I n t 0 5  0 1 6  0  0  - o r , i o r i b u t i o T c  1 . 5 0 9  - 1 0 . 7 6 4 2  T m  ( i f  ) 2 r  leas6 Tc 1.nancial le511 0 0 -1normor,atans the recbusintle1.48 146.24 Tm ((No62 )Tj -0.014 (of Tc -007 (le.29 159.92 4m (the )Tj 0.0042j0 0 5 Tc -007 (lelonger)1.48 146.24 Tm ((N068 )Tj -0.01363 -11Tc -007 (leor5 159.92 Tm (the )Tj 0.0042T50713 Tc -007 (leased )Tj 0.08 Tm (to 68)Tj 0.0042T0 00.0Tc -007 (leGroup9 159.9236.05 nancial )Tj -97.010Tc -007 (ledo120.6 198.08 Tm (up53ncial )Tj --20Tc -007 (leno)Tj 0.04167m (lease )Tj 0.021j 0.0Tc -007 (lehavent )Tj 0.90005 Tc26611.3893a Tm (leas64c 1.1(o20 Td (theuncondi.92 )Tj 0.0457356.05 6o 616 0 0 -righ)Tj 0.04167m (le(of2 -10.764e32 198.08 57 Tc -31 0 Td (indefance )Tj 0660.05 Tc 3228.44327d (in Td (pmue )Tj 0.05.92 Tm (of )Tj ET BT /42335 0279ET B1.22735 159.926 Tc 1.nancial )Tj 41.9270279ET B1.22ased )Tj-)Tj 9-0.035 T.68 -1.2110 0 -11yd )Tj-)Tj 35c -12.3168 -1.21for5 159.9227Tc 1.5752 -10.764 )Tj 0.041657 Tc -301611.3893  Td)Tj 0.040660005 Tc23utions )5 017 94.58 Tm (beyo64Tj ET BT /28 0 )T279ET B1.22monthement )Tj 01 (lease )Tj 0.021usp2 -279ET B1.22aftance )Tj 0493005 Tc248.635 -2stributions2 Tm (of f )Tj ET BT /20018 0279ET B1.22735 159.92 Tm (the )Tj 0.0042 9upo70279ET B1.22ased )Tj4573589 Tc 260 0 0 -11reportans a s  b e y o 6
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Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, 
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there 
are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in 
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time 
value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values 
using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. 
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate. 

v a l u e s 3 5 7 . 4 6 0  T d  ( p r e t a x  ) p o s s i b l 1 7  T d  ( c u r r 6  T c  - 1 0 8  T c  3 . 5 6 o u t f l o w 1 0 . 8  2 6 4 . 9 0 0 1  1 7 5 . 5 8 0 1  T m  ( o f  ) T j 7 T j  0 .  T d  ( p r e t a x  ) 3 5 . 0 8  1 4 8 . 5 8 0 8 0 1  T m  ( c l a s s  ) 3 . 6 4  - 3 6 . 0 1 6  - 1 . 2 5  T 0 2 5 n o m  - 1 0 . 8  1 3 3 6 7 0 1  1 7 5 . 5 8 0 1  T m  ( t i m e  ) 1  ) T 8 3 6 . 0 1 6  - 1 . 2 5  T T d  o u r c - 1 0 . 8  2 6 8 . 5 . 7 9 0 1  1 3 5 5 3 s i 6 e 2 - 1 0 . 8  0  1 7 . 8  7 0  T d  ( p r e t a x  )  1 6 3 . 5 5  1 3 5 . 0 8 0 1  T m  ( a  ) T j  0 . 5 9  t o  
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Cash received from customers which will be applied to subsequent progress billings are 
presented as Advances from Customers account under the current liabilities section of the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

Additionally, as required under Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 12, Service Concession 
Arrangements, construction revenue and cost relating to construction or upgrade services of 
the concession asset is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
in accordance with PAS 11. The consideration is measured at the fair value of the 
construction services provided. 

2.17 Revenue and Expense Recognition 

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference to the 
fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for services rendered, 
excluding VAT and discounts. 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the costs incurred or to be 
incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Contract revenue - Revenue from construction of buildings is recognized using the 
percentage of completion method based on the physical completion of the project, 
while revenues relating to construction or upgrade services of the concession assets 
is made by reference to the stage of completion of the contract ( see Note 2.16). 

Aeronautical revenue - Aeronautical revenues comprise passenger service charges, 
tacking fees, parking fees, and lighting fees. Aeronautical revenues are recognized as 
revenue when the related airport services have been rendered, the rates for such fees 
are currently provided under Administrative Order (AO) No. 2, Series of 2011, 
issued by MCIAA. 

Ai,port merchandising operations revenue - Airport merchandising operations revenues 
relates to sale of food and non-food items within the premise of MCIA. Airport 
merchandising operations revenues are recognized when the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have 

A i r p o r t  r e v e n u e  
a n s  r e v e n u e s  o w n e r s h i p  3 2 0 7 .  . 1 5 j  0 . 0 4 0 3  0  1 0 . 8  3 4 0 . 2 4 0 1  4 7 1 . 3 2 0 1  T m  ( u n d e r  ) 8 . 1 7 - 1 0 5 1 5 j  0 . 0 4 0 3  0 a I A .  i s e r v i c u e s  

ofT15j 0.0403 0feTj 0.0261 T401 4758 0 Td f 10.8 340.25335.04952.993 0 Tu Tc -31.85 -0.58 538.47 (currently  )Tj en Mfacilit, 



-27-

(!) Commercial revenue - Commercial revenues comprise advertising charges, car parking 
and car rental revenues. Car parking revenue comprises time-based charges from 
the operation of car parking services. Car rental revenue comprises concession 
charges from car rental companies. Revenue is recognized when the related services 
are provided. 

(g) Management fee - Fees are recognized when services are rendered. 

(h) Interest income - Income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the 
effective yield on the asset. 

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services or 
at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an accrual 
basis, except for capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the 
related qualifying asset ( see Nate 2.22). 

2.18 Leases 

The Group accounts for its leases as follows: 

(a) Group as Lessee 

Leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are classified as 

as 10 -10.8 390.99 377.3633.8 388 (a.4018.43 314.18 Tm (ac0R34 Tc -110Tm ( 252.65 377.86 Tm (an2)Tj 0.0411 Tc -10.8 0)Tj040 ( 252.65 3777 0 Td (are5)Tj 0.0575 Tc 1.5recogn (capitalfied )Tj -0.035 Tc -10.7642 00 -19.8 252.65 377.36 Tm (a1 )Tj 0.0495 Tc -10.8 0 0 -190 0 -5.15 3632 0  (a.4018.43 314.18 Tm (ac0R34 Tc  0 -Tc  0 -5.15 363.86 Tm (an05)Tj 0.0411 Tc -10.8 0 0 -Tc  0 -5.15 36liabiliti8 (a.4018.43 314.ed )Tj -10.8775 0362-10. 0 -5.15 367.68 Tm (to )Tj -11.0652 0 50-11.20 -5.15 361.36 Tm (the1)Tj 0.0263 Tc -10.8 0332-10.20 -5.15 36consolid7 Td (relate4 )Tj 0157177.3633.6 T9 0Td  Tm (cost )Tj 0.05 Tc -12.103 022.8 0 0 -8.22 377.36 Tm (o13)Tj 0.0411 Tc -10.8 020 - )T 0 -8.22 376 Tm (i(incidenta43)Tj 0.09177.3633.position(a.4018.43 314.ed9099 -10.9286 0 00.07  0 -5.15 363t36 Tm (of )Tj 0.0495 Tc -10.8 011 -10.20 -5.15 361.36 Tm (the )Tj 0.0391 Tc 3.724 0 Tion(a.4018.43 314..05 Tc -12.103 0 0 -60 0 -5)Tj 251.36 Tm (of )Tj -10.9286 040 -3)T 0 -5)Tj 251.36 Tm (th17)Tj 0.0236 Tc -10.8 040 -10. 0 -5)Tj 258 388(transfer )Tj 0.054Tc -11.1571 040 -35. 0 -5)Tj 253t36 Tm (of8)Tj 0.0236 Tc -10.8 0 0 -55. 0 -5)Tj 253m8 Tm (account )Tj -4nt 7 Tc 4.5eq Tm (accrua43 314.ed9137 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10. 0 -5)Tj 253.86 Tm (to2y )TTc -10.8 0 04-10. 0 -5)Tj 251.36 Tm (th0 )Tj 0.0427 Tc -10.810.0 -960 0 -5transfe27of th2leasetransfe27Tj 0.0495 Tc -10.8 0134.30. 0 -5Leases, o 1  Leases41 c o s t  c o s 3 1 o302 an2
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2.19 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign 
currency transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at 
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates. 

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss. 

2.20 Impairment of Non-financial Assets 

The Group's investments in associates and joint venture, property, plant, and equipment, 
intangible assets which include concession assets and acquired computer software 
license, investment property and other non-financial assets are tested for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those 
assets may not be recoverable. 

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are 
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. 

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by33 0 Td (i0 0c 1.94290 Td (foich )Tj 0.0433136 Tc 460 -10.8 99.48 281sw0Ti02 Tm (asses (a310.8 3433136 Tc 460m (os (a310.8 3438 0 0 i 372.68 Tm (or )Tj 031429 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.8 472.538588.68 Tm (cash-generating )Tj 035508 Tc 04974 0 Td (un'ces )Tj 0.0352 Tc 2.973 0 Td (carrying )Tj 0.05 Tc -10.2675 0 0 -10.8 7.35538588.68 Tm (amount )Tj 010326 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.2 3886538588.68 Tmexceedces )Tj 00.081 Tc 5.753 0 Td sets )Tj 0.5(i0 0c 1.973 0 Td (recoverabby33 0 Td 615 Tc 3.525 0 Td (amousby33 0 Td (i0 0 0 024290 Td (foich )T-j 0.0433136 T231 0 Td (is )Tj 0.0495 T-10.9460 -10.8 99.48 2833533 Tc -318653 -1.2 Tdhigither )Tj 0.05 Tc 3922.103 0 0 -10.84021.73938802 Tm (of )Tj 00.081 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.8 7.0493938802 Tm sets )Tj 00.038 Tc 1.94290 Tdfmpaor )Tj 031215 Tc 19973 0 Tdvaluble )Tj 0.1352 Tc 5794290 Tdleloss )Tj 030247 T1..9898 0 Td osusby33 0 Td294 Tc 2.974 0 Tdtoss )Tj -0.0247 T1.1724290 Tdsell 3433136 Tc 460m (440.8 0 0 -10.29081.45938802 Tmandle )Tj 0.1326 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.27079.81938802 Tm sets )Tj 020331 Tc 1.973 0 Tdvaluble in in i n  

teimara8 3433136 Tc 460m (652.8 0 0 -10.8  0 0 8 1 5502 Tm.8 99.48 2838427 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.845.7248 1 5502 Tm(xpecested )Tj 032336 Tc 1.717 0 Tdfutu(are )Tj 0.6141 Tc 88974 0 Td (cash )Tj -0.0407 Tc 16116 0 Td (flows )Tj 0.05 Tc -10.8471 0 0 -10.81888.68 1 5502 Tmfromhe )Tj 0.0414 Tc -10.8 0 0 -10.89248 1 5502 Tm(aoich )Tj 031429 T2 3.8 6 0 Td (cash-generating )Tj 0.0433 T7 0.074 0 Td (unor )Tj 0.05 Tc -10.7103 0 0 -10.8 472.542c 4202 Tmandle i s  i n  the of o s a r e  
flole. 8 3 4 7 1  0  0  - 1 0 . 3 7 1 7 4 6 4 3 7 . 4 . 6 8  T m u s b t e d  pvbted 

148of 14.50.00495 Tc3018 0 0 -10.13272.642c 4202 Tmvalu01Tj 021 56 Tc -10. (o6 0 Td (in8 472.34.5Tj .294 Tc 1enhanc -10.8248 0 0 -10.8 6.4909938802 Tm (in3 )Tj 289.4 Tc -1Disc-10.8 0 0 -1249-165542c 4202 Tmt(os31 5 0389.4 Tc -1factor471 0 0 -127ested 250 T303810231 0 Tddi3her )Tj5ating )Tj95 T5.094.8 0 0 -1071 )Tj 01 0 T30381individual974 0 Tdli491 aets30 T30381exi8807 0 0 -424h-generating by3840 T3038105807 0 0 -1erabby3343 T30381carry.074 0 Td (10.8 6.4906938802 Tm (in24548 2528)141 Tcam-10.8 0 0884642c 4202 Tm (of20t,r62528)141 Tc8 0 0 -324.91 372.68 Tm (t1 3471 528)141 Tc5506 0 Tdsui48327094450.4978 Tmlar175.7 2528)141 Tca. (o6 0 T0 0 -3ole. )T3338800381i.8 0 0 -10.10.8 4.9638800381 Tc -17642.8 0 -42ested 890 T303810.8 0 0 -101rtl(by3167 T3038105807 0 0 -0.393699h )93ol.294 Tc 1c .ovT7 bl807 0 0 -10.8 47041807.4.68 TmT8 99.427e54y31641 Tcam-10.8 0 00 -03936997437.4.68 Tmdata os03.4.68 Tmthal2788 c  234.4835 toi5 ting by3whiu88 472.30.1642.8 9201rtl(by3)Tj 091.05 331 0 Tdd5abby3343i (Tj 77.4.68 T Tc -)T Tc30r876460g 

tr5048525395los.6Tm 8 0 -10l6 -141rtlme39369241rtlr504852535sk0286Tm 8 0 -10.51sal293tTc 169tl(by33 0 T30381 ever3609356Tm 8 0 -10 890 T308 0 0 -9abby3343 38105807 088 0 0 02 Tm .iv7.5 t,T Tc301b3 Tfi3471 46m (in7.8 Tm .iv7.51sal2938802 T6 -141r541rtlr504852546o43756Tm 8 0 -10Tdord.847471 0-3ole. )T3338800381i.888.3js6Tm 8 0 -10 0 0eet-employ25506 0 Tdt7.4.68 Tmthal1134.63e6Tm 8 0 -101sal293tc 4202 Tm (of20t,r7.4dt7e6Tm 8 0 -101-324.91 372.4.69Tc 5.9460 -1098a1.e6Tm 8 0 -100 -d.8479.88437 0 0 -141rtme )s.62 T3887e0935 t,T Tc301b3 Tfi3430r8 c91rtlr5048525358)T5662 T3887e09l6 -141rtlme398523.60g eivm-10.8 0 00 -03936713c 5.9460 -10a95093562 T3887e0910loyee47131c8 0 0 -1071 
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The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a 
defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at 
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The DBO is 
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
The present value of the DBO is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows using a discount rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon 
government bond as published by Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp. (PDEx) 
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have 
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment 
liability. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and arisinod6 Tm (be .2114 Td (terms1623 0 e1isinod6 Tmaij 0.05 Tc1114 60 0 -10.3 193.97 sr.72 Tm (lo0.ntua 0pn Tc 4.369 0 Td (fuassumptio )Tj 0.05 Tc -11.1623 0 0 -11 224115 157.4 Tm (and )Tj 0.01 411c -11 0 0 -11 136.423757.4 Tm (ane )Tj 0.019Tc 1.5725ij 0.05 reritnTj 0.05 Tc -11.1653 0 0 -11 150423 0 7.4 Tm (an )Tj 0.0422Tc -11 0 0 -11 136206 Tm7.4 Tm (anpla)Tj 0.0420 Tc 2.431 0 Td (diasse )Tj 0.05 05Tc -31.891581.227 Td (caxpecludg )Tj 0.05 Tc -11.13225arisinod6 T959 192.3 9m (andmnt )Tj 0.04627Tc -11 0 0 -11 2135653 92.3 9m (aninclud )Tj 0.023 4Tc 4.369 0 Td ((inTj 0.05 Tc -11.164830 0 -11 306.24 Tm2.3 9m (anne)Tj 0.01786Tc -11 0 0 -11 334.994992.3 9m (aninrest ) )Tj 0.0418 Tc 1.72  0 Td ((e )Tj 0.03611.24581 0 Td (0.ntua5 0.015 Tcx-0435 Tc 3.015 0 Td (93proximatimmedi.04l1 Tc 3.913 0 Td5.46Tc1114 60 0 -10.3 018 0 0 -11 227.91 17716 11 (aninrest )0249 Tc 1.597 0 -11 261.39 191446 Tm 272 T2n )Tj 0nsolid.0435 Tc 3.03630 Td5.65proximatst.04.05 Tc -11.4372 0 0-11 306.3 233.71 0272 T2n )Tj157 Tc -1106 0 -11 182.4 164.323725i272 T2n )Tjf 0.nc 0pn Tc 4.36450 Td (rae )Tj 0.ymei0.052 Tc -11 0 0 -1osseich )Tj 0ith2.543 0 Td (21proximati0 -10.3 19 0 Td (z3rrency )Thar322 Tc 4.49830 Td (fustency )or2 Tc 1.915 0 Td (1orp. )Tj credi Tc -11.431 0 Td (67reritnTj 0cogniz5 Tc -11.3215 0 0 -099150423 0 7tham (a72 T2n )Tj411 Tc 1.073 0 Td1 261.39 191446 Tm 24 T)Tj 0.01024r2 Tc 1.933 0 Td (5perience )Tj ehensi186 Tc -3443 0 Td6 TmTc1114 60  )T49 Tc 1.59980 0 -10.7 170.66 17730 T)1 24 Tbe .256 ae 24 T3 a v e  a p 5 3 e r i e n c e 0 1 9 n  T c  4 . 3 6 4  0  T d  ( 6 1 s t e n c y  ) d i s c . 0 4 6 2 7 T c  - 1 1 3 0 5 0  T d  ( r  T c 1 1 1 4  6 r . 0 4 T c  - 1 1 . 1 3 2 2 5 a r i s i n 4 7 6  T m  ( b e  . 2 5 9 9 m  ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j 2 7 2  T c   0  - 1 1  2 1 8 . 5 5  1 9 1 . i a - 0 7 ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j 0 1 9 n  T c  4 . 3 6 1 3 0  - 1 1  3 3 4 . 9 9 4 9 9 2 . 2 4 4 m  ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j b e g i n n 0 5  T c  - 1 2 . 1 0 3  0  0  - 1 1  3 0 6 . 3  2 3 3 . 1 8 6  T 4 ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j . 0 6 5 2  0  0  - 1 1  2 1 8 . 5 5  1 9 1 1 1 1 4 9 7 ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j 0 1 9 n  T c  4 . 3 6 3  0  - 1 1  3 3 4 . 9 9 4 9 9 2 . 5 6  2 8 ( . 3 1  T 2 n  ) T j T j  0 o  4 5  T c  7 . 8  1 4 0  T d  ( 3 1 p r o x i m a t t a k 0 4 9 6  T c  3 . 0 7 1 0 3  0  0 2 4 4  T  ( a d j u s t m e n t s c c . 0 4 6 2 7 T c  - 1 1 2 0 3  0  0  - 1 1  2 3 1 . 7 8  1 9 1 4 0  T m 2 . 1 4 n r e s t  ) 1 5 7  T c  - 1 1  2 r i s i n o d 6  T m  ( b e  . 2 9  ( ( 2 . 1 4 n r e s t  ) a n y 7  T c  - 1 1  2 5 0  T d  ( 7 6 p r o x i m a t 3  0  e 1 i s i n o d 6  T 6 9  0  T d  ( 6 0 p e r i e n c e 0  0  - 1 0 . 3  3 0  0  - 1 j 0 1 9 n  T c  4 . 3 3 2 2 5 a r i s i 3 4 6 6 0 6 . 2 4  T m 2 . 3 5 . u a s . 1 4 n r e s t  ) 0 1 7 8 6 T c  - 1 1 2 5  0  - 1 1  2 6 1 . 3 9  1 9 1 . 8 6  T 4 ( . 1 4 n r e s t  ) d e f  0 4 3 5  T c  3 . 0 9 4 0  T d  ( 4 3 e r i e n c e b e n e f  t 2 9  T c  - 2 5 0 0 9 0  T d  ( 2 e  ) T j  0 .  ) T j  0 . 0 2 0  - 1 0 . 3  0 1 8  0  0  - 1 6 8 3 0 6 . 3  2 3 3 . 1 7 6  5 m 2 . 1 4 n r e s t  ) 1 r 2  T c  1 . 9 1 4  0  - 1 1  2 6 1 . 3 9  1 9 1 1 6 3  T m  . 1 4 n r e s t  ) a 0 . 0 5 9  T c  1 . 5 9 9  0  T d  ( 3 4 2  T m  ( l o d u r 0 4 9 6  T c  3 . 0 7 5 0  T d  ( a 0 6 r r e n c y  ) 0 1 9 n  T c  4 . 3 6 7 3 . 9 7  s r 6 0 e  ) T j  0 . y j  0 o  T c  - 1  - 2 5 3  0  0  - 1 0 . 7 6 4 2 1 8 . 5 5  1 9 1 4 4 6  T m  3 2 8  ) T j  0 . 0 s 2 . 5 4 3  0  T d 1  1 8 2 . 4  1 6 4 . 4 3  9 m 5  3 2 8  ) T j  0 . 0 2 7 T c  - 1 1  0  0  - 1 0  T m T c 1 1 1 4  6  0 . u l 6 2 7 T c  - 1 1 2 0 3  0  0  - 3 1 9  0 T m  ( b e  . 2 9 7 . 5 6  3 2 8  ) T j  0 . 1 5 7  T c  - 1 1 3 0  - 1 1  3 3 4 . 9 9 4 9 9 2 3 3  9 m 1  3 2 8  ) T j  0 .  0 n t r i b u 0 . 0 5  T c  - 1 1 . 1 . 8 6 0  T d 5 . 9 7 3 e r i e n c e 0 1  4 1 1 c  - 1 1 4 1 3 0  T d  ( ( e  ) T j  0 . b e n e f  t 2 9  T c - 1 1 2 5 a i j  0 . 0 u a s s u m p t i p a y 0 . 0 5  . T c  - 1 1 . 3 2 1 5  0  0  - 5 5 6 2 0 4 . 0 3  2 3 3 . 7 9 1 1 1  3 2 8  ) T j  0 . N 1 7 8 6 T c  - 1 1 6 1 3 0  - 1 1  3 3 4 . 9 9 4 9 9 2 1 8 8  T m  . 2 8  .4 erience0isinod6 Tm810 -10 9 reritnTj 0por0435 Tc  -253 0 0 -10.993218.55 1919ham (328 )Tj 0.0s2.543 .3215 0 0 -050227.91 1773 976 328 b e  . 6 2 9 7 6  3 2 8  ( 2 2  T m  ( l o 1 r 2  T c  1 . 9 0 4  T d  ( 0 . 1 3 2  T m  ( l o l o s s 2 7 T c  - 1 1 4 1 0  T d 1 9 8 8 p e r i e n c e 0  0  - 1 0 . 3  4 4 8  0  0  - 1 1  2 1 8 . 5 5  1 9 1 1 4 3 a m  ( 3 6 9 . 0 2 2 j  0 . 0 1 9 T c  1 . 5 7 2 5 7  0  - 1 1  1 3 6 . 4 2  1 7 7 . 4 5 . 4 4 0 6 6 9 . 0 2 2 j  0 . p j  0 o  T c  - 1 1 . 3 2 1 5  0  0  - 3 1 9  0 T m  ( b e  . 9 1 T 5 6  3 6 9 . 0 2 2 j  0 . 1 5 7  T c  - 0  - 1 1  1 3 6 . 4 2  1 7 7 7 8 9 m 1  3 6 9 . 0 2 2 j  0 . 0 2 7 T c  - 1 1  9 7 0  T d 0 . 7 a v e  ) T j  0 p l a  0  - 1 0 . 3  7 8  0  - 1 1 3 4 ( 1 o r p -  ( 1 o r p m p t i 0 . 0 5 d . 0 5  T c  - 1 1 . 4 4 4  0  - 1  9 m 5 2  T m  ( l o 0 1  4 1 1 c  - 1 1 1 3 5 0  T d  ( 8 4 a s s u m p t i c u r t a i l . 0 5  . T c  - 1 / T 1 _ 2  1 0  f   - 2 5 3  0  0  - 9 . 0 9 7 1 5 0 4 2 3  0  . 2  4 7 3  T 2 n 4 7 9 1 T 2 n  ) T j ( b ) T c  - 1 E T  B T  / S u s p e c t  < < / C o n f 4 2 3 > > B D C   - 1 0 . 4 8 u a s s u 2 3  0  . 2  4 4 6  8 6 n 4 7 9 1 T 2 n  ) T j P ) s 5 - e m p l q y . 0 5  T c  - 1 E M C   / S u s p e c t  < < / C o n f 4 2 3 > > B D C   - 1 0 . 9 1 1 3 s s u 2 3  0  . 2  3 7 6  8 2 n 4 7 9 1 T 2 n  ) T j D e f  0 4 3 5  T c  E M C   E T  B T  - 1 0 . 6 8 2 2 s s u 2 3  0  . 2  3 4  . 2 1 n 4 7 9 1 T 2 n  ) T j C 0 n t r i b u 0 . 0 5 2  T c   0 6  T 1 8 7 s s u 2 3  0  . 2  a 4  T 9 2 n 4 7 9 1 T 2 n  ) T j P l a  s T c  - 1 / T 1 _ 1  1 0  f   0  T d 1  1 8 2 . 4  1 6 4 . 4 4 h a m 4 . 4 3 6 1 T 2 n  ) T j A T c  - 1 1 . 1 . 8 5 0  T d  ( 0 5 r r e n c y  ) d e f  0 4 3 5  T c  3 . 0 3 6  0  T d  ( 4  T c 1 1 1 4  6 c 0 n t r i b u 0 . 0 5 2  T c  1 . 9 1 4 2 0  - 1  9 5 7 v e  ) T j  0 p l a  0  - 1 0  - 2 5 3  0  0  - 1 0 . 5 3 9 2 1 8 . 5 5  1 9 1 6 1 3 . 6 4 . 4 3 6 1 T 2 n  ) T j i s 2 . 5 4 3  0  T d 1  1 8 2 . 4  1 6 4 . 3 0 3  T 3 . 4 3 6 1 T 2 n  ) T j 0 2 7 T c  - 1 1 4 3 5 0  T d 0 . 7 a v e  
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2.22 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, 
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of 
such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the 
asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare 
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when 
substantially all such activities are complete. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. 

2.23 Income Taxes 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of current tax and deferred 
tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any. 

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal 
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid 
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws 
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the 
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax 
expense in profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is accounted for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the 
end of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with 
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences and def erred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at 
the end of each reporting period financ60ed abilTj -11.1079  0 -10.8 100.47 505.16 Tm2the3 

6haila assets 
ex03 60e.4.9286 in0 -10.8 474.51 544.04 Tm46ses5 60e.4.9286  0 0 -10.8 475212 518.12 Tm  
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally 
enforceable right to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred 
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority. 

2.24 Related Party Relationships and Transactions 

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the 
Group and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party in making :financial and operating 
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one 
or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the 
Group; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting 
power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close 
members of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group's funded retirement 
plan. 

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form. 

2.25 Equity 

Capital stock represents the nominal value of common and preferred shares that have 
been issued. 

Additional paid-in capital includes any premium received on the issuance of capital stock 
or reissuance of treasury shares. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of 
shares are deducted from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits. 

Revaluation reserves comprise actuarial gains and losses due to remeasurements of 
post-employment defined benefit plan and the mark-to-market valuation of its 
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2.27 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging 

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a 
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured and 
accounted for in the statement of financial position at fair value. The method of 
recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedge of an identified risk and qualifies for hedge accounting treatment or accounted for 
as derivative not designated for hedges. 

The objective of hedge accounting is to match the impact of the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument in the statement of comprehensive income. To qualify for hedge 
accounting, the hedging relationship must comply with strict requirements such as the 
designation of the derivative as a hedge of an identified risk exposure, hedge 
documentation, probability of occurrence of the forecasted transaction in a cash flow 
hedge, assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness, and reliability of the 
measurement bases of the derivative instruments. 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents 
the hedge relationship to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation 
includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the 
nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's 
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash 
flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in 
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an on-going 
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial 
reporting periods for which they were designated. 

The Group's derivative financial instruments are accounted for transactions not designated 
as hedges. Certain freestanding derivative instruments that provide economic hedges 
under the Group's policies either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are not 
designated as accounting hedges. Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments not 
designated as hedges are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income. 
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the 
fair value is negative. For bifurcated embedded derivatives in financial and nonfinancial 
contracts that are not designated or do not qualify as hedges, changes in the fair value of 
such transactions are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

2.28 Events After the End of the Reporting Period 

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group's 
consolidated financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is 
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not 
adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires 
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the 
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates. 

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements: 

(a) Distinction Between Business Combination and Asset Acquisition 

The Group determines whether the acquisition of an entity constitute a business 
combination or an asset acquisition. The accounting treatment for the acquisition is 
determined by assessing whether the transaction involved a purchase of a "business" 
taking into consideration the substance of the transaction. Failure to make the right 
judgment will result in misstatement of assets. 

Management has assessed that the acquisition of ownership in Altria is to be 
accounted for as asset acquisition (see Note 11.2) since it does not constitute a 
purchase of business. Conversely, the purchases of ownership in GMCAC, MCEI, 
MLI, Globemerchants and MCBVI are accounted for as investments in subsidiaries, 
while the purchases of ownership in MWCCI and CMCI are accounted for as 
investments in associates. Moreover, the acquisitions of interests in MGCJV and 
MWMTI are accounted for as interest in joint operation and joint venture, 
respectively (see Notes 1.2 and 11). 

(b) Distinction Between Operating and Finance Leases 

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessee and lessor. Critical 
judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either 
an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure 
to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of 
assets and liabilities. 

Management has assessed that the lease agreements for transportation and other 
equipment in which the ownership is transferred to the Group is accounted for as 
finance lease. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. 

(c) Capitalization of Borrowing Costs 

The Group determines whether the amount of finance costs qualifies for 
capitalization as part of the cost of the qualifying asset, or expensed outright. The 
accounting treatment for the finance costs is determined by assessing whether the 
asset is a qualifying asset taking into consideration the period of time to get the agreements 



-34-

(d) Impairment of AFS Financial Assets 

The determination when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired requires 
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other 
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than 
its cost, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee, 
including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology 
and operational and financing cash flows. 

Based on the recent evaluation of information and circumstances affecting the 
Group's AFS financial assets, management assessed that the investment is not 
impaired. Future changes in those information and circumstances might 
significantly affect the carrying amount of the assets. 

(e) Accountingfor S ermce Concession Atrangement 

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC right 

to design, develop, and undertake the MCIA Project; and, 
enjoy complete and uninterrupted possession of the MCIA Project Assets for the 
purpose of implementing the MCIA Project. 

At the end of the concession period, GMCAC shall hand-over the MCIA Project 
and the Project Assets to the Grantors without cost, free from any liens and 
encumbrances, including all improvements made to the airport facilities, commercial 
assets, works in progress, and right to receive revenues. In addition, GMCAC shall 
be entitled to collect and receive concession revenue consisting of revenues on 
account of passenger service charge, airport parking fees, and tacking fees; other 
apron charges; and, revenues from commercial charges. GMCAC may apply for an 
increase of such fees following the procedures as set forth in the Concession 
Agreement. 

The Group 
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(!) Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies 

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and 
contingencies. Accounting policies on recognition of provisions on contingencies 
are discussed in Nate 2.15 and relevant disclosures are presented in Nate 27. 

(g) Determination of Control, Joint Control and Significant Influence 

Judgment is exercised in determining whether the Group has joint control of an 
arrangement or significant influence over an entity. In assessing each interest over 
an entity, the Group considers voting rights, representation on the BOD or 
equivalent governing body of the investee, participation in policy-making process 
and all other facts and circumstances, including terms of any contractual 
arrangement. 

Management considers that the Group has de facto control over Globemerchants 
even though it effectively holds 50% of the ordinary shares. The Parent Company 
exercises control over the entity because major decisions involving entering and 
negotiating SDA with DFPC still rests with the Parent Company. In line with this Td (over )Tj 0.01 Tc 1.259 0 Td  v101 Tm (Parentvj 0.00287d)Tj 0.0151.7801 Tm (in d1 294.020-11nc 2.63 006 Tc -11 0 0 -11 961.7 Tm (in d1 294retaints )Tj 0.0404 Tc 31167 0 Td (control )Tj 0.0257 Tc 3.044 0 Td (over )Tj 0.0843 Tc 2.166 0 Td (Globemerchant'y )Tj 0.0279 Tc97.825 0 Td operpatiosC )Tj -0.127 Tc 48059 0 Td (se01 Tm (Parentvj 0.50294 0 0 -11 132.9501 m (in d1 294NoteC )Tj -0.1479 Tc -11 0 0 -111164.3 m (in d1 294259)y. )Tj 0.05 Tc -11.3898 0 0 -114484.3 61.74201 Tm (The )Tj -11..028 0 0 -11425.499 61.74201 Tm (Group )Tj 0.0679 Tc -11 0 0 -11 9 1.5001 61.74201 Tm (has )Tj 0.4128 Tc 1.191 0 Td[ (d(terlinnd 3478 (that ]TJj 0.05 Tc -11.3517 0 0 -11295.48001 61.74201 Tm int )Tj 0.0202 Tc -11 0 0 -112835.8001 61.74201 Tm (has )Tj 0.028 Tc 1.282 0 Td significaent )Tj 0.0647 Tc 45355 0 Td influeancn )Tj 0.05 Tc -11.0995 0 0 -11 70.73001 61.74201 Tm ien )Tj 0.0438 Tc -11 0 0 -11158.45001 61.74201 Tm MWCCIs and eanc,n 

the investets reatend 

se01 Tm (Parentvj 0.35103 0 0 -11 170.0301 7 4.1001 Tm NoteC )Tj -0.0702 Tc -11 0 0 -110871.7 T7 4.1001 Tm -11.)y. Parentvj 0.95428 0 0 -80.1158.01301 7 4.1001 Tm (In )Tj/T1_3 01 f (Pa0202 Tc -11 0 0 -111441.2301 7 4.1001 Tm addiatio,n )Tj 0.0294 Tc 4.059 0 Td (the )Tj 0.4825 Tc 15166 0 Td (Group )Tj 0.15Tj 0.01 0243.259 0 Td  (has )Tj 0.3027 Tc 1.191 0 Td (d(terlinnd )Tj 0.05 Tc -11.1635 0 0 -11 732.1001 84781001 Tm (that )Tjj 0.32995 0 0 -113522.1001 84781001 Tm int )Tj 0.0202 Tc -11 0 0 -11 342308 84781001 Tm (has )Tj 0.2548 Tc 1.744 0 Td joient control over and and s h i l l  
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Also, in 2015, the Parent Company's ownership interest in SSPI was accounted for 
as other 
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(c) Impairment oJTrade and Other 
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The carrying amount of intangible assets is analyzed in Notes 12 and 13. The 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is analyzed in Note 14. 

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment in 2017 and 2016, and intangible assets in 2017 and 2016. Actual results, 
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by the changes in 
factors mentioned above. 

(g) Principal Assumption far Estimation of Fair Value of Investment Properry 

The best evidence of fair value is the current selling prices of the parcels of land. 
In the absence of such information, the Group determined the amount within the 
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the Group 
considers information from a variety of sources including: 

i) Current prices in active market for properties of different nature, conditions or 
locations, adjusted to reflect those differences; 

ii) Recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to 
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions 
that occurred at those prices; 

iii) Current prices for lease of similar assets; and, 

iv) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash 
flows, derived from the terms of possible lease and other contracts, and 
(where possible) from external evidence such as current market rents for 
similar properties in the same location and condition, and using discount rate 
that reflects current market assessment of the uncertainty in the iv) 
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Management has assessed that no impairment losses are required to be recognized 
on the Group's non-financial assets in 2017, 2016 and 2015. 

(j) Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit 

The determination of the Group's obligation and cost of post-employment defined 
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in 
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates 
and salary rate increase. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions 
may generally affect the recognized expense and the carrying amount of the 
post-employment benefit obligation in the next reporting period. 

The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation and expense and an 
analysis of the movements in the estimated present value of DBO, as well as the 
significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation are presented in 
Note 22.2. 

4. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Group's operating businesses are recognized and managed separately according to the 
nature of services provided with a segment representing a strategic business unit. The 
Group's business segments follow: 

4.1 Business Segments 

(a) Construction - principally refers to general construction business which involves site 
development, earthworks, structural and civil works, masonry works, and architectural 
:finishes, electrical works, plumbing and sanitary works, :fire protection works and 
mechanical works. 

(b) Airport Operations - mainly relate to the business of building, rehabilitating, renovating, 
constructing, developing, operating, and maintaining the MCIA, including the 
commercial assets thereof and all allied businesses for the operation and maintenance 
of said airport facility. 

Other operations of the Group comprise the operations and financial control groups. 
These segments are also the basis of the Group in reporting to its executive committee for 
its strategic decision-making activities. Transactions between segments are conducted at 
estimated market rates on an arm's length basis. 

Segment revenues and expenses that are directly attributable to business segment and the 
relevant portions of the Group's revenues and expenses that can be allocated to that 
business segment are accordingly reflected as revenues and expenses of that business 

segment. 

4.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities 

Segment assets are allocated based on their physical location and use or direct association 
with a specific segment and they include all operating assets used by a segment and consist 
principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, 
net of allowances and provisions. Similar to segment assets, segment liabilities are also 
allocated based on their use or direct association with a specific segment. Segment 
liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts, wages, taxes 
currently payable and accrued liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities do not include 

def erred taxes. 
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4.4 Reconciliation 

Presented below is a reconciliation of 
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

6. 

Cash 
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Receivables from 



8. 
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As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fair values of financial assets at FVTPL amounted 
to P3,209.5 million and P4,673.1 million, respectively. The fair value change in 2017, 2016 
and 2015 is not significant; hence, such was no longer recognized in those years. 

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 

This account consists of the following: 

2017 2016 

Consumables and spare parts p 170,312,581 p 94,076,254 
Rebars 115,771,409 75,894,416 
Mechanical electrical plumbing 

and fireproof materials 85,786,135 62,086,054 
Hardware 81,536,055 37,370,785 
Precast 49,394,756 87,559,175 
Others 74,493,133 94,320,018 

p 5'.22,2241062 :e 451 306 :ZQ2 

Certain scrap construction materials were sold for P0.6 million, P1 .6 million and 
P1.4 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Proceeds from the sale are presented as 
part of Others net account under the Other Income (Charges) section in the 
consolidated statements of income (see Note 23.3). 

Others pertain to construction materials which include painting materials, nails and 
adhesive items. 

9. COSTS AND BILLINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS 

An analysis of these accounts is shown below. 

Total costs incurred on 
uncompleted contracts 
(work in progress) 

Total billings on uncompleted 
contracts (progress billings) 

Note 

19.1 

2017 2016 

P43,454,156,149 P56,858,697,689 

( 42,297,986,591) ( 55,212,308,965) 

P 1,156,162,558 P 1 646 388 724 

The net amounts are included in the consolidated statements of financial position under 
the following accounts: 

Costs in excess of billings on 
uncompleted contracts 
( shown under current assets) 

Billings in excess of costs on 
uncompleted contracts 
(shown under current liabilities) 

2017 2016 

P 2,095,587,099 P 3,014,946,269 

( 939,417,541) ( 1,368,557,545) 

P 1,156,162,558 P 1 646 388 724 
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10. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 

AFS financial assets pertain to the Group's investments in medium to long term RTB in 
2017 and 2016, certain equity investment acquired in 2015 wherein the Parent Company 
does not exercise control or significant influence (see Note 1.2) and golf club shares. The 
details of AFS financial assets are shown below. 

2017 2016 

Investments in RTB p 929,773,159 p 929,036,358 
Investment in SSPI - at cost 2,500,000 2,500,000 
Golf club shares 1,044,472 1,044,472 

p 23313121631 E 232 580 830 

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of AFS financial assets are as follows: 

2017 2016 

Balance at beginning of year p 932,580,830 p 1,669,477 
Disposal of R TB ( 929,036,358) 
Additions of RTB 921,510,000 1,000,000,000 
Unrealized gain Ooss) on 

fair value change of R TB 8,263,159 ( 70,963,642) 
Investment in SSPI 1,874,995 

Balance at end of year p 233!3121631 E 232 580 830 

In 2017 and 2016, RTB with an original face value of P922.0 million and P1,000.0 million, 
respectively, was purchased and held indefinitely. These may be sold in response to 
liquidity requirements and changes in market conditions. The Group recognized gain 
amounting to P8.3 million in 2017 and loss amounting to P71.0 million in 2016 due to fair 
value changes of AFS financial assets, which is presented as Unrealized Gain (Loss) on 
Fair Value Changes of AFS Financial Assets in the 2017 and 2016 consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income. 

In 2017, the Group sold the RTB amounting to P1,000.0 million at P921.5 million. 
Consequently, the Group recognized a loss amounting to P78.5 million which is presented 
as Loss on sale of AFS financial assets under Finance Costs section in the 201 7 statement 
of profit or loss (see Note 20.1). 

As discussed in Notes 1.2, 3.1 (g), 3.1 (h), the" Group has equity interest of 1 % as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively over its investment in SSPI. The Group 
accounted for its investment in SSPI at cost ( see Note 1.2) as it determined that its control 
over SSPI as of December 31, 2015 is temporary. 

SSPI was incorporated in the Philippines on August 7, 2015 and established for the 
operation of solar power and power sover 7, and 
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11. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE AND 
ACQUISITION OF ASSETS 

The carrying values of Investments in Associates and Joint Venture account are shown 
below: 

Note 2017 2016 

Investments in: 
Associates 11.1 p 799,974,741 p 794,439,423 
Joint venture 11.3 304,243,825 102)72)54 

:e 1!104!218,566 :e 826 612 lTZ 

The significant commitments related to the associates and joint venture are discussed in 
Note 27. 

These associates and joint venture are not listed in the localo11.77.0375 Tc 1UTj ET BT /3l6201 Tc 2.52 0 Td0U31lo11.77.localo0302.9401 To5 Tc 1.2.52 0ne;09;5alo0302.9401 0 >>BDC85989 0 0 dnce,o0302.94094c -12.01 0 Td (localo11.7703881.6201 and )Tj 1 an60.04 Tc 2.52 0 Td fair 475.22 94401 Tm (27. )Tj 00.0 Tc -3242.151 0 Td0 -119 381.49 81.6201 T116(27. )Tj 0.0306c -3242.151 0 Td68.3601 12454401 Tm (27. )Tj 005 83.943242.151 0 Tdlocalo11.7706475 Tc 11.8943 0 sh11  395.21 310.9401 Tm1 (of )Tj 0.0BDC943242.151 0 Td(co275.49 34.340315(of )Tj 0.49379 Tc3242.151 0 Tdbount )Tj 0401 Tm (joint )Tj05 90 Tc3242.151 0 Tddeterminreociates loato0302.94094c -1-3Tj tme25 Tc 15.31t52.99 122.3001 Tmc 115989 0 0 Td (values )j 0.015 Tc -18 -11.0448m(are 395.21 310.94011 T116(27. )Tj 372 90 Tc3 BT1151 0 Td68.360101 Tm (the )Tj 0.)TjvestTc3 BT1151 0 Tdt52.99 122.369401 Tm (joint )Tj42.86tTc3 BT1151 0 Tdi 0 Td (in )Tj 0.02327 Tc .043.665 0 Tare 2 0 1 7  J o . 0 8 c 3  B T 1 1 5 1  0  T d e i t 5 2 r  Note 3512.151 0 Td6r joint 

a r e t u r e  l i s t e d  localo11.77 270.6201 466(27. )Tj   /Sm (3512.151 0 Tdneeociates )091 Tm (listed )Tj 1 T 551 3512.151 0 Td8(ine 395.21 310.94011 10 (Note )Tj1MC 04 T512.151 0 Td68.3601 12279401 Tm (joint )T1)Tj69 3512.151 0 Tdlocsscussed  ( v e n t u r e  ) T j   / c  - 1 - 3 6  1 1 5 e 2 5  T 4 4 5 5 9  0  T d  ( a r s . o 0 3 0 2 0  - 1 5 7 . 6  2 2 9 . 0 2  2 4 4 . 3 4 1  T  0 ( a n d  ) T j  0 E M C 5  T . T  ( j 8  - 8 8 E T  B T  / T 1 . 5 . 3 6 0 1  1 2 4 5 8 4 4 . 3 4 1  T 6 n d  ) T j  0 E M C 5 5 3 8 5  ( j 8  - 8 8 E T  B T  / I  0  T d  ( i n  ) T j  0 0  - 1 6  4 7 5 . 1 2 0 1  2 7 0 . 6 2 2 . 4 4 4 m  ( 6 1 2  ) T ) T j 8 7 - 8 8 ( j 8  - 8 8 E T  B T  / h e  ) T j  0  - 1 5 7 . 6  2 2  1 2 4 9 7 4 4 . 3 4 1  T 6 n d  ) T j  0 E M C 1 3 8 0 U 3 0 1 ( j 8  - 8 8 E T  B T  / A  0  0  - 1 1  3 9 5 . 2 0  - 1 1  4 7 5 . 1 2 0 1  2 7 0 . 6 2 0 1  T m  ( T h e  ) T j  0 . 4 3 7 6 5 1  4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  4 5 2 . 8 6 0 1  2 7 4 0 6 2 0 1  T m  ( 2 0 1 7  ) T j a n t  8 6 t T c 4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  5  0 p o n e r e  3 9 5 . 2 1  3 1 0 . 9 4 0 1 1  1 0  ( N o t e  ) T j 3 9 1 . 4 4 c 4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  6 8 . 3 6 0 1  1 2 4 5 4 4 0 1  T m  ( 2 7 .  ) T j  3 7 8 j  E t T c 4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  t 5 2 . 9 9  1 2 2 . 3 0 0 1  T m c  1 2 5 1  0  0  -  T d  ( v a l u e s  ) j  0 1 4 3 5  T c  - 1 1 . 5 5 9  0  T d  - 1 1  3 9 5 . 2 1  3 1 0 . 9 4 0 1 1  5 2 0  ( N o t e  ) T j 2 8 7 - 7 6 5 1  4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  6 8 . 3 6 0 1  1 2 1 0 4 4 0 1  T m  ( 2 7 .  ) T j  2 . 4 3 5 3 t T c 4 2 2 . 4 < < / C o n f  t 5 i s  ) T j  0 . 0 1 3 3 7 5  T c  8 2 5  0  T d  ( a c c ( a r e t u r e  ) T j ) T j 5  T c  - 1 1 T c  4 . 1 8 5 T a r e  
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The following table presents the audited financial information as of and for the periods ended 
December 31, 2017 and2016 ofMWMTI (amounts in thousands). 

Total Assets Total Liabilities Total Revenues Net Loss 

2017 
2016 

P 1,837,321 P 1,240,685 P 
5,084 P 

153,460 (P 3,858) 
6,860) P 205,578 P 8,363 (P 

11.4 Interest inf oint Operation 

As discussed in Note 1.2, MGCJV shall undertake the construction works for the 
renovation and expansion of the MCIA Project. Also, as discussed in Note 2.3(c)(i), the 
Parent Company's interest in MGCJV is accounted for as joint arrangement - joint 
operation and, as such, the Parent Company accounts for its interest in the relevant 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of MGCJV. As of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the relevant financial information of the Group's interest in 
MGCJV which are included in the appropriate accounts in the Group's 2017 and 2016 
consolidated statements of financial position and consolidated statements of income is as 
follows: 

Before After 
Elimination Elimination Elimination 

December 31, 2017 E 9 0 1 7 s   0  0  T j  0 0  9 27 Tc -11.40,680,165 0 0 Tj 003ropria5 35tion Befoj -tion f o 2  2  E90174.9815

20428j

20 mbe6j0552 331.279.8 0 0 -102tement14 285.56 Tm (20 59.21)552 331.279cost 0 0 -100.8 109.918885.56 Tm (2044)T0 3565Tj 0.279.n 0 0 0 -9.3 424.2 258.95 0 0 -10.8Tj 0565Tj 0.279u -10ple 0 Td (stat.8ludeds )2j0.0391 4 Ttract8 0 0 -10.8 471.819 50.0391 679,243,97 042 0 0 -00ropria5 35jon fol2(E93j578 61 Tc liabil 0 e1 0 0 -10.61uded 3.6070 -10.8 0.0417,525.194 0 0 -10.85opria5 35tion )Tj 0.0417,525.194 0 0 10.0476 0 0  424.2 8.95 0 0osibe69 6i2j181.2798 0 0 10.01cial 



December 31, 2016 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and 
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Noncurrent portion of input VAT amounting to P1,961.9 million and P1,411.7 million as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, represents GMCAC's input VAT, consisting 
mainly from the payment of bid premium in 2014, which will be recovered in future years. 
The balance is to be transferred to input VAT under Other Current Assets 
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12. 6 Investment in Trust Fund 

On November 28, 2014, GMCAC's BOD authorized GMCAC to establish, maintain and 
operate trust and investment accounts with a local universal bank (Security Trustee). The 
investment in trust fund constitutes (i) Revenue Accounts; (ii) Future Major Maintenance 
Fund Account; (iii) Debt Service Reserve Accounts; (iv) Debt Service Payment Account; 
and, (v) Distribution Accounts, collectively referred to as "Cash Flow Waterfall Accounts" 
and Loan Disbursement Accounts under a certain Omnibus 
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As of 





15. 
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In 2017, 2016 and 2015, certain property and equipment were sold for P16.0 million 
P137.8 million and P4.2 million, respectively. As a result, the Group recognized gains 
amounting to PS.2 million and P51.7 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and loss 
amounting to P1.7 million in 2015, and are presented as Gain (loss) on disposals of 
property and equipment as part of Others - net under Other Income (Charges) account in 
the consolidated statements of income (see Note 23.3). Further, the significant portion of 
the sale transactions in 2016 was made to a related party under common ownership 
[see Note 26.9(d)]. 

The Group acquired several transportation equipment and construction equipment under 
finance leases. Outstanding liabilities from the :finance leases as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016 amounted to P205.8 million and P273.8 million, respectively, and are presented 
as Obligations under finance lease under Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings in the 
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 16.3). 

In 2017, the Parent Company reclassified parcels ofland previously classified as property, 
plant and equipment to investment property since these parcels of land are not used by the 
Group in its ordinary course of business or held for undetermined use (see Note 31.6). 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the gross carrying amounts of the Group's 
fully-depreciated property, plant and equipment that are still in use are P414.0 million and 
P259 .0 million, respectively. The Group cons (thnt )Tj 5 0 0 -110 Td ((see )TTc 4.156 0 4 P259 
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Retention payable pertains to amounts withheld from payments made to 
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The notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, general and unsecured 
obligation ranking at least pari passu with all other present and future direct, 
unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Parent Company. 

The notes are issued in three tranches with the fol-3R,ng 
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On September 16, 2016 and December 5, 2016, the Parent Company availed an unsecured 
10-year corporate note amounting to P650.0 million and P350.0 million, respectively, to 
refinance the 5-year corporate note issued in 2011. On December 16, 2016 the Parent 
Company availed another Pl,000.0 million unsecured 10-year corporate note for its 
general corporate requirements. 

These 10-year corporate notes bear an interest rate based on the closing per annum rates 
of a ten (10)-year PDST-R2 rate on the PDS Group website plus a certain spread. The 
Parent Company has to maintain a debt-to-equity ratio of not more than 2.33 and a debt 
service coverage ratio of at least 1.1. 

The notes, among other things, restrict the Parent Company's ability to: 

(a) Engage in any business or make or permit any material change in the character of its 
business from that authorized on its amended articles of incorporation and by-laws; 

(b) Amendment of articles of incorporation and by-laws which would cause a material 
adverse effect or be inconsistent with the provisions of the finance document; 

( c) Change of ownership and management if as a result the stockholdings of Citicore 
Inv TdtTj 0.0200 Td 8-4iP8iration er1 182.n60 0 -115.13oT.22 -31.387Pnc.any's if 
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On August 10, 2017, the Parent Company sent a letter to the bank requesting the waiver 
of one of the loan negative covenants that prohibits the stockholdings of Citicore in the 
Parent Company to fall below 51 % or enter into profit sharing, partnership or joint 
venture whereby its profits are shared with any other person that may 
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The total drawdowns to date made for the onshore loan amounted to P13,666.0 million 
while drawdowns on the offshore loan amounted to US$11.0 million (or equivalent to 
P517.7 million). The proceeds of the loan was used to refinance the bridge facility 
extended by a local universal bank which was used to partly finance the payment of the 
Project's Upfront Premium and to finance the capital expenditures and other costs in 
relation to the Project. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the 
total onshore and offshore loans amounted to P20,420.4 million and P16,997.1 million, 
respectively. Total drawdowns for loans in 201s amounted to 1,0001.0 million 

whlns drawdowns o80.02601 Tm (on )Tj 0.0294 Tc -11 0 0 -11 473.35 80.02601 Tm (the )Tj 0.0627 Tc 1.536 0 Td (offshore )Tj 0.4227 Tc 38.47 0 Td (loan )Tj 0.4142 Tc 21795 0 Td (amounted )Tj 0.0435 Tc 4.536 0 Td (to )Tj 0.0497 Tc 1.831 0 Td US$401.0 m i l l i o n  s  to 
2 , 5 0 0 1 . 0  millio).n 

amount 

o

f

 

d r a a n  faciliires i n  the 
a m o u n t e d  to m i l l i o n  

and 021.91801 Tm nial 021.91801 Tm (for )Tj 0.4382 Tc 1.595 0 Td j 02owns and offshore l o a n ,  respectively. of c o s o  relating t o  draan a m o u n s 0  

2017 201s 

3 6 ,  8 5 , . 5 8 9  
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urting t h e  s  
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c n s o l i d a t t e d  of sens r e l a t i n g  m o r t i 4 o d  ( t h e  ) T j  0 4 n s  c212410420246411.026e511. c21ainting71185 Tc 1inclu11 0 0 -11423724104629  0 Td (cn8tmmenAs85185 Tc 1a85 Tc60.013 0 Td (u1 222521173.2601 Tm (of0.316)Tj 0.05 s32n9887f11431.7111 T446411.026e53the )T 0.05 s32n9880995 0 Td iss58411.2863.2601 Tm130.23)Tj 0.05 s32n9882.715 0 Td (co26inting 55 02 Tc 23568, 0 Td (c4raan )-3.04 0.0294-0.435 0 0 -115 0 Td sto )Tj 0.458 co12410420246411.026e
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4 47Tj 461 0.0416 Tc 0 -111431104815211. 9446411.026 831. Tj 461 0.0416 TcIncom 0 0 -11182u3Tj 0.057 Charges) 0 Td sto 3Tj 0.42j -0.2245acc0 -1111 1elating morti9953.2601 Tm2571. Tj 461 0.0416 Tc13 0 Td (t813711.3673.2601 Tm245f0 Tj 461 0.0416 Tc29  0 Td (cnsolidatted )Tj 0.0316 Tc546415 0 Td stsitiionAs 205 Tc -1Tc -12 3126 0 0 -11 22252 089433.2601 Tm12 07N/T1461 0.0416 Tc 0 0 -11320.711.3673.2601 Tm9942jTj 461 0.0416 Tc13com 0 0 -111821211. 3.07788)Tj -0.435 135703 0 0 -11029283114o 3T.2601 Tm 50.4curre7505 s32n988-11 0 0 -1118228411.2863.2601 Tm423.25urre7505 s32n98823.1 0 Td (rela41sf )Tj 862j 0.4375ot38 0 Td po216inting551-0.2245accru15 0 Td sts36Tj 0.052j 0.437interes9 0 Td is378Tj 0.0401-0.2245a 0 -11 0 0 -1142o co08inting71 e r s f  6 T
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(b) 0 ther Bank Loans 

In addition, the Group also obtained various bank loans with total outstanding balance of 
P2,485.5 million and P2,595.0 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, 
representing unsecured short-term loans from other local banks. The loans bear fixed 
annual interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 2.8% in 2017, 2.5% to 2.8% in 2016 and 
2.5% to 4.0% in 2015. Total interest on these bank loans amounted to P66.7 million, 
P124.8 million and P97.8 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively, and is presented as 
part of Interest expense from bank loans under Finance costs under Other Income 
(Charges) account in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 23.1). The unpaid 
portion of these interest amounted to P3.3 million and P2.8 million as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Interest payable under Trade and 
Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 15). 

16.3 Finance Lease Obligations 

The obligations under finance lease have an effective interest rate of 6.0% in 2017 and 
2016. Lease payments are made on a monthly basis. Total interest from these obligations 
amounted to P14.8 million, P10.9 million and P7.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, and is presented as part of Interest expense from finance lease under Finance 
costs under Other Income (Charges) account in the consolidated statements of income 
(see Note 23.1). 

17. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS 

18. 

Advances from customers for construction works relate to the following projects: 

2017 2016 

Contracts in progress: 
Third parties p 295,821,076 P 1,163,738,958 
Related parties 26.1 7,507,271 

303,328,347 1,163,738,958 
Deposit received prior to 

commencement of a project 223,742,745 114,814,830 

p 527,071!022 P 1 2:Z8 553 :Z88 

Advances from customers will be applied against the contract receivables based on 
work accomplishment on the project. 

OTHER LIABILITIES 

The details of this account are as follows: 

2017 2016 

Current: 
Withholding taxes p 60,713,819 p 58,719,076 
Deferred output VAT 41,155,461 35,243,700 

Deferred revenue 7,867,130 9,863,237 

Others 30,269,935 10,023,924 

p 140,006!345 p 113 842 23:Z 
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Notes 2017 2016 

Non-current: 
Retention payable 15 p 234,464,123 p 119,165,438 
Security deposits 27.1.2 3,895,236 110,316,400 
Unearned rent income 606110 

:e 238!352,352 E 230 08:Z 2~8 

Deferred revenue represents advance payments from customers and concessionaires that 
are subject to refund or future billing applications within 12 months from the end of the 
reporting period. 

Unearned rent income pertains to the difference between the fair value and principal 
amount of security deposits received at the inception of the lease with concessionaires, 
which shall be amortized over the corresponding lease term. 

Others under current liabilities significantly include government-related payables for 
employee benefits. 

19. REVENUES 

19.1 Contract Revenues 

The details of this account for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are 
composed of the revenues from: 

Contracts in progress 
Completed contracts 

2017 

P 15,982,614,204 P 10,270,745,337 P 13,324,272,035 
730,024,389 5,515 417 447 634,215,891 

P 16.712.638.593 P 15 786 162 784 

About 12%, 36% and 28% of the contract revenues for 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, 
were earned from contracts with an associate and certain related parties under common 
ownership (see Note 26.1). 

Contracts in progress and the balances of the related accounts are as follows: 

Notes 2017 2016 

Total contract cost incurred and 
recognized profit (less 
recognized losses) to date 9 P 43,454,156,149 P 56,858,697,689 

Contract receivables 6 2,613,982,476 1,437,335,967 
Retention receivables 6 3,254,902,557 2,283,690,169 
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20.2 Costs of Airport Operations 

The 
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21. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE 

The details of operating expenses by nature are shown below. 

Notes 2017 2016 2015 

Outside services P 6,333,998,651 P 5,970,134,153 P 5,653,518,501 
Materials, supplies 

and facilities 5,696,914,274 5,499,111,558 4,653,917,528 
Salaries and employee 

benefits 22.1 1,371,232,087 1,292,012,029 954,789,646 
Project overhead 845,008,197 773,550,438 679,743,698 
Depreciation 12.5, 13, 

and amortization 14 695,964,736 629,171,969 529,677,854 
Utilities 153,923,584 143,866,866 160,740,435 
Repairs and 

maintenance 57,249,626 43,856,678 12,262,060 
Professional fees 44,179,254 30,724,030 51,268,080 
Cost of goods sold 40,797,109 
Selling expense 38,550,315 
Travel and 

transportation 34,616,672 33,295,066 25,799,109 
Taxes and licenses 30,750,090 60,225,132 23,128,829 
Representation 28,598,072 23,465,539 26,284,164 
Airport 

operator's fee 26.8, 
27.4.1 (b) 26,910,779 22,720,062 17,966,326 

Airline collection 
charges 20.2 23,025,228 21,586,104 25,885,562 

Insurance 21,209,381 25,326,341 34,413,100 
Rentals 26.2, 

27.1.1 21,132,049 29,039,124 35,712,668 
Advertising 17,639,348 4,741,132 10,937,756 
Security services 9,321,858 9,059,068 9,271,403 
Gas and oil 1,236,983 1,448,670 771,365 
Miscellaneous 244,163,727 265,612,129 202,038.666 

P15.736.422.020 P14 878 946 088 P13 108 126 750 

Miscellaneous includes certain construction reworks and warranty cost for certain projects 
already completed. 

These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of income as follows: 

Notes 2017 2016 2015 

Contract costs 20.1 P 14,084,101,553 P13,426,336,857 P11,868,970,116 
Costs of airport 

operations 20.2 420,246,176 360,951,169 348,461,765 
Costs of airport 

merchandising 
operations 20.3 40,797,109 

Other operating 
1,091,658,062 890,694,869 expenses 1,191,277,182 

P15,736,422 .. 020 P14 878 946 088 P13 108 126 750 
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22. POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION 

22.1 Salaries and Employee Bene.its Expense 

Expenses 
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The movements in the present value of the DBO are 
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2017 2016 2015 

Recognized in consolidated 
other comprehensive 
income (loss): 
Actuarial gains (losses) 

arising from: 
Changes in financial 

assumptions (P 14,340,443) p 6,868,213 p 5,667,595 
Experience adjustments ( 7,317,776) ( 29,145,292) ( 3,013,345) 
Changes in demographic 

assumptions 112,241 
Return on plan assets 

( excluding amounts 
included in net 
interest) ( 165,156) ( 174 938) ( 187 872) 

(f 21!'.Z11i134) (£ 22 452 011) P 2 466 JZ8 

Current service costs are included as part of Salaries and employee benefits under 
Other Operating Expenses account in the consolidated statements of income. The 
net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs account in the consolidated 
statements of income (see Notes 21 and 23.1). 

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) are presented under item 
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. 

In determining the amounts of the post-employment DBO, the following significant 
actuarial assumptions were used: 

2017 2016 2015 

Discount rate 5.74% 5.49% 4.95% 
Expected return on 

plan assets 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
Employee tum-over rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics 
and mortality tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring at 
the age of 60 is 23.8 years. These assumptions were developed by management with 
the assistance of an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to 
the end of each reporting period by reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon 
government bonds with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the 
post-employment obligation. were 

assistTm (1 0 0 -11 124.i005 -1.227 Td (the )Tj 0.0067 Tc 1.613s65a2 Tc 2.333 1 102.99 6322.438 Td (Assu41Tj 0.0042 Tc (ass15011 1.99 6322.43currTj 0.0067 T65a2 Tc 2.333 i6ture )Tj  (assisw 0.016 Td ( 6)Tj 0.0498 T4.333 1 1 0 Tdi.uTc -35.256 35 Tc -11.0cmark 124.85 618.74 Tm 044Tm (average8606  6 )T (actuarydTd (obliga)Tj 0.0272 Tc 2.6866% )T6 )T (actuad (the )Tj' -11 124.i03)Tj 0.0s65a2 Tc h-11oricT4.333 1 109256 -1.1 Tc -11 0c -11.5385.Tc 7.069 3.016 T-bligaTj 0.-2.aturitTc 2..2 470% )T68)Tj 0ctua(c).333 1 10800% foci-1157 Tc -0.04079ritTc 2..2  -1.46768w i t h  4 3 t e r m s  1 . 4 4 3  0  T d 2 2 c  - 1 1  0 0 . 0 4 9 8  T 4 . 3 3 3  - 3 4 . 3 1o 9  a n  
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(z) Investment and Interest Risks 

The present value of the DBO is calculated using a discount rate determined by 
reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a decrease in the interest 
rate of a reference government bonds will increase the plan obligation. However, 
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's investments in 
debt securities and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will create a 
deficit in the plan. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the plan has short-term 
investments managed through UITF. 

(iz) Longeviry and Salary Risks 

The present value of the DBO is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of the plan participants during their employment and to their future 
salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of the plan 
participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation. 

(d) Other Information 

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial 
assumptions, the Group's asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and 
uncertainty of future cash flows related to the post-employment defined benefit plan 
are described below and in the succeeding page. 

(i) S ensitiviry Ana!Jsis 

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial 
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment DBO as of 
December 31: 

2017: 
Discount rate 
Salary growth rate 

2016: 
Discount rate 
Salary growth rate 

Impact on Post-Employment Defined 
Benefit Obligation 

Change in 
Assumption 

+/-1% 
+/-1% 

+/-1% 
+/-1% 

Increase in 
Assumption 

(P 25,297,633) 
30,553,508 

(P 23,378,988) 
28,220,686 

( 

( 

Decrease in 
Assumption 

p 31,783,584 
24,638,723) 

p 29,472,568 
22,738,566) 

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other 
assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change 
in the DBO as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation 
of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore,Tj 0.0391 Tc 5-11 322.23014710391 Tc 40 Td (Furth2t-1.2-11 d (i4sumptitive )T-0.0184 c -11 0 0 81.2the )Tj 0.024 Tc 1.4443 0 Td (assumptiobo.05 Tc -120523 0 2.87the )Tj ity 
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(ii) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions 

The retirement plan trustee has no specific matching strategy between the plan assets 
and the plan liabilities. 

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the 
plan assets before they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing of 
contributions to the plan assets are at the Group's discretion. However, in the event 
a benefit claim, the shortfall will be due and payable from the Group to the plan 
assets. 

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments within 10 years 
from the end of the reporting periods follows: 

More than 1 year to 5 years 
More than 5 years to 10 years 

2017 

P 30,197,197 
70,442,597 

2016 

P 9,952,056 
30,940,298 

P 100.639.794 P 40 892 354 

The weighted average duration of the DBO at the end of the reporting period is 
16.7 years. 

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) 

23.1 Finance Costs 

The breakdown of this account in 2017, 2016 and 2015 is as follows: 

Notes 2017 2016 2015 

Interest expense from: 16 
Bank loans p 279,835,724 p 304,090,333 p 214,925,858 
Notes payable 354,192,747 294,900,693 313,393,982 
Finance lease 14,799,233 10,868,662 7,252,363 

648,827,704 609,859,688 535,572,203 
Impairment losses 

on receivables 6 96,652,067 4,832,271 
Foreign currency 

losses (gains) - net ( 16,418,553) 42,981,171 14,893,910 
Bank charges 8,399,117 8,723,793 3,881,896 
Interest expense on 

retirement 
obligation - net 22.2 6,069,457 3,595,006 2,738,982 

Loss on sale of AFS 
financial assets 10 78,487,134 

p 822,016!926 E 662 221 222 p 557 086 221 
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23.2 Finance Income 

The details of finance income are the following: 

Notes 2017 2016 2015 

Interest income from: 
Financial assets 

atFVTPL 7 p 102,357,778 p 128,691,756 p 107,030,267 
Short-term 

placements 5 49,786,941 45,001,921 31,495,095 
Cash in banks 5 16,281,624 10,732,710 3,320,815 

p 168.426,343 p 184 
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Under the terms of the registration, the applicable rights and privileges provided in the 
Omnibus Investment Code of 1987, the Parent Company is entitled to the following tax 
and nontax incentives, among others: 

(a) Income Tax Holiday (ITH) for a period of four years from June 1, 2011; 

(b) Importation of consigned equipment for a period of 10 years from June 1, 2011 
subject to posting of re-export bond; 

(c) Employment of foreign nationals which will hold supervisory, technical or advisory 
positions for five years from June 1, 2011; and, 

(d) Exemption from warfage dues and any export tax, duty, impost and fee on exports of 
its registered export products for a period of 10 years from June 1, 2011. 

In June 2015, the Parent Company's entitlement under the ITH incentive expired. 

On May 29, 2015, the BOI approved the Parent Company's application for registration of 
its projects as PPP for School Infrastructure Project Phase 2 - Contract Package A 
pursuant to Build-Lease-Transfer Agreement with the Philippine DepEd on a nonpioneer 
status under the Omnibus Investment Code of 1987. Under such registration, the Parent 
Company is entitled of the following incentives: 

(a) ITH for a period of four years from May 30, 2015 or actual start of commercial 
operations, whichever is earlier; 

(b) Importation of capital equipment, spare parts and accessories at zero duty for a 
period of five years from May 30, 2015; 

(c) Additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages corresponding to the 
increment in number of direct labor for skilled and unskilled workers in the year of 
availment; and, 

(d) Employment of foreign nationals which will hold supervisory, technical or advisory 
positions for five years from May 30, 2015. 

On June 20, 2016, GMCAC was registered with the BOI as a PPP Project for the GMCAC 
(Phase 2 - Operation and maintenance of Terminal 2) under the Concession Agreement 
with the DOTr and MCIAA as an expansion Project on a Non-pioneer status under the 
Omnibus Investment Code of 1987 (Executive Order No. 226). 

Under the registration, GMCAC is entitled, among others, to ITH incentives for three 
years from December 2018 and July 2018 for Phase 1 and Phase 2, respectively, or actual 
start of commercial operations, whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of 
registration. GMCAC has informed the BOI that the actual start of commercial operations 
of Phase I is on January 1, 2016 for ITH purposes. 

Also, GMCAC is entitled to additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages 
corresponding to the increment in number of direct labor in the year of availment as 
against the previous year, if the project meets the prescribed ratio of capital equipment to 
the number of workers set by the Board. This may be availed for the first five years from 
date of registration but not simultaneously with ITH. 
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24.2 Current and Deferred Taxes 

The components of tax expense as reported in profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income in the consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income are as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 

Reported in consolidated pro.fit or loss 
Current tax expense: 

Regular corporate income 
tax (RCIT) at 30% p 444,795,347 p 584,156,772 p 285,331,732 

Final tax at 20% and 7.5% 23,188,157 36,188,529 28,960,393 
467,983,504 620,345,301 314,292,125 

Deferred tax expense (income) 
relating to origination and 
reversal of temporary 
differences 111,065,886 ( 172,032,794) 155,191,220 

p 579,049.390 p 448 312 507 p 469 483 345 

Reported in consolidated other 
comprehensive income (loss) 
Deferred tax expense (income) 

relating to origination and 
reversal of temporary 
differences (P 6,513,340) (£ 6 735 605) 

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax 
expense for the year ended December 31 is as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 

Tax on pretax profit at 30% p 848,057,520 p 710,402,474 p 583,052,451 
Adjustment for income 

subjected to lower tax rates ( 12,843,737) ( 18,094,083) ( 15,047,080) 

Tax effects Decemb -0
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The dividends on preferred shares bear cumulative, non-participating cash dividends based 
on the issue price, payable quarterly in arrears every dividend payment date, at the fixed 
rate of 7.025% per annum from listing date. 

On December 11, 2017, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends for 
common shares at PO.OS per share. The cash dividends was paid on December 29, 2017 
to all common stockholders of record as of December 26, 201 7. The dividends was paid 
out of the unrestricted retained earnings of the Parent Company distributable as dividends 
as of December 31, 2016. 

25.3 Treasury shares 

On July 20, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the buy-back of 410.8 million 
common T b  date.1u21_3 1 .41.2801 Tm 95 0 Td (20, )Tj -0.0014 Tc 16901 175. 2801 Tm (3.p-1.6d (21 -1.103 0 1 Tc -11 0Corpo 0 0 -11 175.944 103 0 5.7701 24242 0 00 -11 30475. 2801a10.9932 0 01 Tm0.01Tc -11 0  )T5 0 Td (was )Tj 2.370.0188 Tequal11 175.944 0 Td (4)Tj 0.05 _2 1 Tf(Parent )Tc846237 Tc -11 0 0 -11 24 103 .44 1101all 0 -1c -7-trad0 -44 Tm (7. 1 -11 47of ) )Tj 0.aj -0.001433Td (the6457 Tc -1volum_3 1 .41.28 )Tj 0.4237 Tc -weighj 0.05 Tc - 0 -11 472037 Tc -averagTj 0.0125 T9wrent buy-b24 0.0122.9446Tc 2.539.5203 0 0 -60.035 Tc -10.4289 10063 T2.9446Tc 2.53294 Tc 2. 
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Also in 2016, the Group's controlling 60% ownership in MCLI resulted in 
40% non-controlling interest of the other stockholder. The non-controlling interest 
representing 50% ownership of GHOSPL in Globemerchants and 40% of other 
stockholder in MCLI are presented as part of Non-controlling Interest account in the 
consolidated statements of financial position ( see Note 11.5). 

25.5 Revaluation and Other Reserves 

The movements of this account are as follows: 

Retirement AFS 
Benefit Financial Other 

Obligation Assets Reserves 
(see Note 22) (see Note 10) (see Note 2) Total 

Balance as of 
January 1, 2017 p 3,839121 0: 70 963 642) Q: 22,474,837) Q: 

movemeCaG/07106.4601>>R,BDC  -0.035 rr p Q: Ot18 /T1_3.28n 
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Retirement AFS 
Benefit Financial Other 

Obligation Assets Reserves 
(see Note 22) (see Note 10) (see Note 2) Total 
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Outstanding 
Related Party Amount of Receivable 

Category Notes Transaction (Payable) Term Conditions 

Related Parties 
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Outstanding 
Related Party Amount of Receivable 

Categor_y Notes Transaction (Pavable) Term Conditions 

Related Parties Under 
Common Ownership: 

Rent income 26.2 p 267,857 p 263,393 Normal Unsecured 
credit terms 

Revenue from services 6, 19.1 
26.1 2,520,320,414 167,088,575 Normal 

credit terms Unsecured 

Advances from customers 26.1 39,660,186 Normal 
credit terms Unsecured 

Rent expense 26.2 2,911,697) On demand Unsecured 

Advances granted 6, 26.6 3,833,288) 62,483 On demand; 
N oninterest-bearing Unsecured 

Advances obtained 15, 26.7 1,095,445) 6,919,382) On demand; 
N oninterest-bearing Unsecured 

Retirement Fund 26.9(a) 16,590) 3,933,315 Upon retirement 
of beneficiaries Partially funded 

Sale of land 26.9(d) 136,340,000) 33,902,500 On demand; 
N oninterest-bearing Unsecured 

Advances to Officers 
and Employees 6, 26.3 8,386,345) 18,172,143 Upon liquidation; 

Noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

Key Management Personnel -
Compensation 26.10 149,491,241 Ondemand Unsecured 

26.1 Rendering of Services 

In the normal course of business, the Group provides construction services to its 
associate, a certain previous shareholder and other related parties. The related revenue 
from these transactions amounted to P2,028.0 million, P2,662.8 million and 
P3,256.1 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is recorded as part of Contract 
Revenues account in the consolidated statements of income ( see Note 19 .1). Services 
rendered to the above related parties are based on normal terms similar to terms that 
would be available to non-related parties. 

The outstanding contract receivables from these transactions, which are generally 
unsecured and settled through cash within three to six months, and the related 
retention receivables, which can only be collected after a certain period of time upon 
acceptance by project owners of the certificate of completion, are presented as part of 
Contract and Retention receivables under Trade and Other Receivables account in the 
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 6). 

There were no impairment losses recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 for these related 
party receivables. 

The Group, also receives advances or deposit from related party customers. In 201 7 
and 2016, the advances from customers with related parties amounting to 
P219.0 million and P39.7 million was applied against the progress billing based on 
project working accomplishment as of December 31, 201 7 and 2016, respectively. 
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26.2 Rental of Land and Building 

The Group is a lessee of certain parcels of land and building owned by related parties 
under common ownership. 

In 2017 and 2016, the Group recognized rent expense amounting P2.6 million and 
P2.9 million, respectively, from the lease agreement with Megapolitan Realty and 
Development Corporation (Ivlegapolitan) for the land where the Group's building is 
located (see Notes 21 and 27.1.1). The Group has no outstanding payables from the 
rental transaction with Megapolitan as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

In 2017 and 2016, the Group also leases an office space where its registered address is 
located from Philwide Construction and Development Corporation (Philwide). 

Megapolitan and Philwide are entities owned by the Group's stockholders and their close 
family members. 

The Parent Company also leases out its office space to its associates and related parties 
under common ownership. As a result, the Group recognized rent income amounting 
to P0.4 million each in 2017 and 2016 from the lease of its office building to several related 
parties. This is recorded as part of Other Income (Charges) - net account in the 
consolidated statements of income (see Note 23.3). The outstanding balances arising from 
these transactions are presented as part of Other receivables under the Trade and Other 
Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 6). 

26.3 Advances to Officers and Employees 

Advances to officers and employees represent unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash 
advances for business-related expenditures that are to be liquidated 60 days from the date 
the cash advances were received. The outstanding receivables from these transactions are 
presented as part of Trade and Other Receivables (see Note 6). 

No impairment losses were recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 for these advances. 

26.4 Cash in Banks 

The Group has certain bank accounts and short-term placements, which earn interest 
based on prevailing market interest rates, maintained with related parties under 
common ownership as of December 31, 20152 536.84 Tm (in )Tj EMC  ET BT 35 61 589.4 Tm (as )

as ch 
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26. 6 Advances to and from Related Parties 

The Group obtained unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash advances from certain related 
parties to finance portion of its working capital requirement payable upon demand. The 
outstanding balance from these transactions is shown under Trade and Other Payables 
account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 15). 

The Group gave unsecured, interest-bearing cash advances to its associates and certain 
related parties under common ownership for their working capital requirements. The 
outstanding balance from these transactions is shown under Trade and Other Receivables 
account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 6). 

Further, no impairment losses were recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 for these advances. 

The Group's outstanding receivables from and payables to the same related parties as 
presented can be potentially offset to the extent of their corresponding outstanding 
balances ( see Note 31.2). 

26. 7 Advances to and from Minority Shareholders 

The minority shareholders granted unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash advances to 
GMCAC to support its Project bid-related expenses. The minority interest shareholder 
also granted unsecured noninterest-bearing cash advances to MCEI to support its working 
capital operations. The outstanding balance from this transaction is shown under Trade 
and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of m0t9h13901.916 0 T617 376.82 Te85 Tc -11. (the )Tj 0.0n1 390.14 Tm (Trade )Tj 02 Tm (The )T384.19 323.40(the )Tj 0.0n1 390.14 Tm (Trade )Tj 02 Tm (The )T384.19 323.40(the )Tj 0.0n1 390.14 2781j 0.05 Tc -12.3116 0 0 -11 246.36 282.5 Tm (of )Tj 0.0258 Tc -11 0 0 -11 233.31 282.5 Tm (their )Tj 0.0352 Tc 2.2i4 Tm (o(282.ig Tm (26. rest )Tj 0.oi8tq3 0.05u841 41 152.4376.828rd )Tj 0.08ction (The )T2.2599 0 0 -11.1 0  0.0elated )20 Td (7 298 179Cect )Tj 0.0t12.2599 0 09u1u6i0375j 0.023310m (of )Tj 0.0258 Tc -11 0 0 -11 233.31 282.5 Tm (their )Tj 0.0352 Tc 2.2i4 Tm (o(282.ig Tm (s.904 or'3384 0 0 -14ranted 0352 Tc 2F.05u841Tj 0.0259 Tc 80.0152.4376.10m (of )5j 0.0-11 .05511 0 0I(Trade )T4518 0 Td (the )Tj 459.741 .05511 0 0Augu108 Tc 4.110Tm (o(2381 390.14211.upport )T40461 0 T63.ig Tm (Tm (The )Tj 0.4.908 0 -11.1623sign )Tj 02 61 0 T99 (unsecua323.40(the )Tj 01.21 390.14Technic2.5 Tm (th00.4.908 47 0 0 -11Servim (Trade )T9r )Tj 02 0 0 -11Agrehe )Tpport )T42.4.908 9.0255 Tc y8 403.64 Tm (m3p4376.828rd )Tj 0.726 -11 0 0 -143 0I(Trade )T451GILgrehe )Tpp Tm (outstanding )TT42.4Af5as. )Tj 0.0c0C10m (of )0 0 -11.5 0.05 Tc7rode )T451GILgreh108 Tc 420 Td (7 298o259 Tc 80.0152.43768 Tc 420 Td1 Tc 6h109lso526 -c955 )Tj 02 0 0 44(workin971Tj 0.0212.103 0d (no2.64 Tm 3o526 -c9(unsrtisj 02 0 0 4xpenses.)Tj tal )Tj 0.0256 T4514 Tm (14.4484 0 0 Tj 0.0272 Tc 5.706 080 0 -11.5 646)Tj 48 29451GILroup0elated )1 381.160.764 (outstand253 )TT48 29451GIa11 452.1 4758 Tc -11 0 0 -11241I(Tra8 29451GIrequi6.82 Tm (sup4c 4.9047(the )TjTm (The )T384.19 )Tj 0.0n1 3909lated )7e th00.4.908 47 0 01011Servim4.4484 0 s9r outstandi7 267u1 -111.1 0a7 376.82 c 3.044 0 T220.06 363.1Tm 2u1 -111.1 0pa(o(282.-12.52116 0 0 -11)Tj9gu1 -111.1 0of )Tj 0.02s 7 298 179Cect34 (m05 )T88.0 Td[.4376.828rd 

a ) T c  8 0 . 0 1 5 2 . 4 3 7 6 . 1 0 m  

the 314211.u30j 02 61 0harehol 0 Td (t 0.0061 0.oi8tq957 Td (0m (1 152.4376.828rd )Tj 0.08 23398 179Cect )T67u5908 11.1 0  0.0elated )04 7
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The Parent Company is also a guarantor and 

of the guarantee is as follows: 

Related Parties 

SSPI p 
Next Generation Power Technology Corp 
First Toledo Solar Energy Corporation 

Amount 

1,690.0 million 
1,255.0 million 
4,375.0 million 

Execution 

January 2016 
May 2016 

September 2016 

(c) In August 2015, MCEI and SSPI entered into a Deed of Assignment whereby MCEI 
conveyed its rights and obligations over its Solar Energy Service Contract with the e n e r g y  area located 

in 
Silay, Negros Occidental as covered bgy 
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group: 

27.1 Operating Lease Commitments 

2 7.1. 1 Group as Lessee 

The Group is a lessee under operating leases covering its office space, and its stockyards 
and certain construction equipment with terms ranging from one year to two years subject 
to renewal options. Total rental expense from these operating leases, presented as 
Rentals under Other Operating Expenses amounted to P21.1 million, P29.0 million and 
P35.7 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 21 and 26.2). The related 
refundable security deposits amounting to P87.9 million and P79.5 million as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are presented as part of Other Current Assets 
in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 12). 

27.1.2 Group as Lessor 

The Group is a lessor under operating leases with various entities and airline companies 
for the lease of airport terminal space and check-in counters which have a lease term 
ranging from one to three years. Rental income earned amounted to P303 .2 million, 
P301.8 million and P158.1 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively which is 
recognized under Airport Operations Revenues in the consolidated statements of income 
(see Note 19.2). The related security deposits are presented as part of Trade and Other 
Payables and Other Non-current Liabilities section in the consolidated statements of 
financial position (see Notes 15 and 18). 

The future minimum lease receivables under the non-cancellable operating leases as of the 
end of the reporting periods are as follows: 

2017 2016 

Within one year P 83,661,438 P 111,496,194 
41,098,000 After one year but not more than five years 

P 83.661,438 P 152 594 194 

27.2 Finance Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee 

The Group has finance leases covering certain transportation and construction equipment 
with terms ranging from two to five years. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under 
the finance leases together with the present value (PV) of the net minimum lease payments 
(NMLP) as of December 31 are as follows: 

Within one year 
After one year but not 

more than five years 
Total 11:LP 
Amounts representing 

finance charges 

PV of11LP 

2017 
Future PVof 

MLP NMLP 

p 85,549,331 p 75,987,851 

146,159,433 129,823,822 
231,708,764 205,811,673 

25,897,091) 

:e 20518ll1fi'.Z3 :e 20518111673 

2016 
Future PVof 
11:LP NMLP 

Pl 04,640,231 P 93,904,068 

200 482,358 179 912 721 
305,122,589 273,816,792 

( 31305797) 

E2:Z3 816 :Z22 E2:Z3 8J6 :Z22 

The liabilities relating to the finance leases are shown as part of Interest-bearing Loans and 
Borrowings account (see Note 16.3). 
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GMCAC is a pioneer in the privately operated airport space in the Philippines when it 
took over the Mactan Cebu International Airport on the scheduled take over date of 
November 1, 2014. 

(b) Technical Service Agreement 

On August 19, 2014, GMCAC entered into a Technical Services Agreement 
(the Agreement) with GIL to provide for the services in compliance with the Concession 
Agreement are described below. 

(i) The preparation of policies and procedures such as O&M Manual and the updating of 
such every January 30th of each calendar year, Fire Safety Manual, and any other 
additional systems, documentation and manuals to meet the Performance Standards 
under the Concession Agreement; 

(ii) Provide training or technical services to key personnel of GMCAC so that GMCAC 
may undertake the O&M of of 5 Tc -90.0001 Tn 

(i)) ( P v i d e  t o q l s  i f i  toexrsots( 
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As required in the Notice of Award on the ITS Southwest Project, MWMTI entered into 
an OLSA with a local universal bank, wherein the Parent Company is one of the 
guarantors [see Note 26.9(b)]. Moreover, MWMTI is committed for a construction 
performance security amounting to Pl 00.0 million in the form of irrevocable unused letter 
of credit to the DOTr, which was guaranteed by the Parent Company in 2015. In 2016, 
the Parent Company was relieved from this guaranty upon execution by MWMTI of an 
irrevocable unused letter of credit under its own name [see Note 26.9(b)]. 

27.5 Credit Lines 

The Group has existing credit lines with local banks totalling P40,745.4 million and 
$75 million (P3,744.2 million) for 2017 and P42,287.0 million and $75.0 million 
(P3, 729 .0 million) for 2016. 

The Group availed of bank loans totalling P26,713.9 million and $75.0 million 
(P3,7 44.2 million) for 2017 and Pl 1,291.3 million and $40.0 million (P2,500.0 million) 
for 2016 (see Note 16.2). Only the loan obtained by GMCAC was secured, as disclosed in 
Note 16.2. Unused credit lines as of December 31, 2017 amounted to P14,031.5 million 
and availed all the credit limit in dollar; and Pl 7,296.1 million and $24.0 million 
(Pl,200.0 million) as of December 31, 2016. Certain credit lines were handled by a 
previous related party local universal bank [see Note 26.9(b)]. 

27.6 Capital Commitments on Use of Proceeds 

The Parent Company has capital commitments to utilize the proceeds from the 
issuance of its preferred shares amounting to P3,938.5 million for various PPP projects, 
development of renewable energy projects, and bid preparation and preliminary works for 
PPP projects that the Parent Company will bid for (see Note 25.1). As of December 31, 
2017, the balance ofunutilized proceeds amounted to P1,853.1 million. 

27. 7 Legal Claims 

There are pending claims, tax assessment, and other legal actions filed by the Group or 
against the Group arising from the normal course 

pvaritions d e e d s  
that legal p r a u n t e d  t o  c l a i ) .  deeds that the claihe and by the A s  

G r o o n .  2 8  5 8 c  -  0 2 2 2 9 4  T c  1 . 1 1 1  0  T d O ( o t h i m s  ) T j  / T 1 _ 1  1  T f  0 c s 4 f r o m  the a n d  G r o ' o n s  a o u s h e  
th e b y  t n a l  A s  9 9 s t  t - 1 7 . 1 . 0 4 9 6 5 4 . 9 2 -  0 . 0 5  T  T c  5 8 c  -  0 2 8 0 1 4 3 8 0 . 0 9 0 3 t 5 9 0 o  9 6 0 r h a t  -  0 . 0 5 5   7 5 1 5 8 8 ( t o  ) T j  0 4 6 4 1 5 8  T j . 2 5 5 9 0 o  by0.5.25 Tc.25590o 

a n d  
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28. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic and diluted EPS were computed as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 

Net profit attributable 
to shareholders of the 
Parent Company 

Dividends on cumulative 
preferred shares 

P 1,781,192,211 P 1,559,090,997 P 1,273,682,741 

( 281,000,000) ( 281:000:000) ( 281,000:000) 

Net profit available to 
common shareholders 
of the Parent Company 

Divided by weighted average 
number of outstanding 
common shares 

Basic 
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30.1 Market Risk 

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and 
specifically to 
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The sensitivity of the profit before tax is analyzed based on a reasonably possible 
change in interest rates of+ /-90.0, + /-24.0 and+ /-14.0 basis points in 2017, 2016 
and 2016, respectively, based on observation of current market conditions with effect 
from the beginning of the year. The changes in interest rates have been determined 
based on the average market volatility in interest rates for each period using standard 
deviation and the financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period that 
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables held constant, if the 
interest rates increased by 90.0 basis points, 24.0 basis points and 14.0 basis points 
profit before tax in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, would have increased by 
P11.9 million, P25.6 million and P4.6 million, respectively. Conversely, if the interest 
rates decreased by the same basis points, profit before tax would have been lower by 
the same amounts. 

( c) 0 ther Price Risk S ensitivi!J 

The Group's market price risk arises from its financial assets 
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The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial 
assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position or in the detailed analysis 
provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as summarized below. 

Notes 2017 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 p 4,930,939,177 p 6,265,285,131 
Trade and other 

receivables - net 6 6,505,856,735 4,911,317,262 
Financial assets at FVTPL 7 3,209,481,581 4,673,051,661 
Investments in RTB 10 929,773,159 929,036,358 
Refundable security 

and bond deposits 12 98,320,376 90,978,010 
Investment in trust fund 12 413,649,488 197,680,058 

p 161088!0201516 P 17 Q67_ 3:1:8 :1:80 

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit 
enhancements, except for cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables as 
described below. 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the 
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included 
in the cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which 
are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum 
coverage of PO.S million for every depositor per banking institution. 

(b) Trade and Other Receivables 

Of the gross carrying amount of trade and other receivables, a substantial portion is 
due from various related parties as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 26.1). 
The Group mitigates the concentration of its credit risk by regularly monitoring the 
age of its receivables from the related parties and ensuring that collections are 
received within the agreed credit period. Moreover, the related advances from 
customers will be offset against the trade and other receivables (see Note 31.2). 

Contract receivables are usually due within 30 to 120 days and do not bear any 
interest. 

Some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due as at the end of the 
repo94 t the the 

Cont71 T0.04 Tc 11 1.0383 Tc 0u7 Tc 3.1,  due d u e  end repo94 t the  t h e  

1 d  ( 8 1  T 0 . 0 4  T c  1 1  1 4 . 6 0 6 4 1 . 1 s 7 4 0 1  T m T  ) T j  0 . 0 0 7 5 3 ( e n d  r e p o 9 4  t  ) T j 0 2  0 u 8 , j 4 1 . 1 s 7 4 0 1  T m c  ( a r e  ) T j  - 0 . 0 0 0 4  T c  1 3 . 7 7 a y s  no041.1s7401 Tm 2.133 0 Td2224 Tcrepo94 t 1 2 5 - 1 1  1 7 7 . b e l o w 0 s 5 1  - / T 1 _ 2  4 0 1 f 0 . 3 4 0 1 1 2 4  T c  . 0 u 5  T
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31. CATEGORIES, OFFSETTING AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

31.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of financial position are shown below. 

2012 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

~ YalJ.1c11 YalYce Ya!JJ~S Ya!JJes 
Financial Assets 

Loans and receivables: 
Cash and cash equivalents p 4,930,939,177 p 4,930,939,177 p 6,265,285, 131 p 6,265,285,131 
Trade and other receivables - net 6 6,505,856,735 6,505,856,735 4,911,317,262 4,911,317,262 
Refundable security 

and bond deposits 12 98,320,376 98,320,376 90,978,010 90,978,010 
Investment in trust fund 12 :U3 642 488 4JJ,642 488 127 68Q Q58 12:Z 68Q Q58 

11,248,265 ZZ6 11 248 265 ZZ6 11 465 26Q,461 11 465 26Q 461 

Financial assets at FVTPL: 7 
Short-term commercial papers 3,207,553,457 3,207,553,457 4,671,151,008 4,671,151,008 
UITF 1228 124 1,228,124 l 2QQ 653 12QQ653 

3,202m.m 3,2!lMSl 581 4673Q5l 66l 1673 Q5l 661 

AFS financial assets: 10 
Investments in RTB 929,773,159 929,773,159 929,036,358 929,036,358 
Club shares 1,044,472 1,044,472 1,044,472 1,044,472 
Investment in SSPI - at cost 2 500 OQQ 2 SQQ QQQ 2 SQQ QQQ 2 SQQ QQQ 

233 31'.UiJl 233 312 631 232 58Q 83Q 232 58Q 83Q 

:E 16 091 564 288 :e 16 091 564 988 E 17010 822 252 E 17. 070 822 2 52 

Financial 

564 6.4 Tm (564>BDm (Finan3 )Tj /T1_3 1 Tf2n 0 0 -7.1 36 3n.s36.7751oeEMCs36.7751 0 0m it28n1.1 112.18 346.58 T6 2  /T1_3 1 T3 )T89n3 
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Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

December 31, 2016 

Financial assets: 

Equity securities: 
Financial assets at 

FVTPL (UITF) 7 p 1,900,653 p p P 1,900,653 
Golf club shares 10 1,044,472 1,044,472 

Debt securities -
Investments in RTB 10 929 036,358 

:e 1 200 653 E230 080 830 :e 231 281 483 

The 

The 8580Tl (Inves-719.14 218.06 Tm (:e ) )Tj EMC  /Susbj E40 (:e ) 016e65.92 Tm (BoaT1  /Suspect  /Suspe2a3 (:) )Tj78.24 T 0 >>BDC (:e )T 218.24 Tm (483 )TTd (aDC  -7 371</Con >>BDC (:ef114.02 Tm (assTm (s68 0 0 91f 0 >>BDliabil7 Tc -5.29894 5.087 0 )Tj 0 >>BDmeasured1  /Suspect  /S -709Td (aDC  -7 0.0.Td n >>BDC (:eTPL )TjsTm (0 E40 (:e ) )Tj78.24 T2202 6on >>BDC (:efairember )Tj04Tc 5.1261 0 >>BDvalueET BT /Sus832 -1.3901 0 >>BDaT1  /Suspect  /S38 116 )Tj78.24 T.858(cln >>BDC (:eo 165.68.24 523 )Tj78.24 T.5.394 n >>BDC (:e1, )Tj -0.0023 Tc0 -37.6(:e ) )Tj78.24 T10 Tdd n >>BDC (:eTj /T1_2.24 1m (483 <<1219.32239.127 0 07-5.29894 372 -1.337d (at )Tjnd1  /Susp07c -9.518Td (Level(s6.-5.29894 (Equity494 Td63840 Td (3Tm reember )Tj (036,05 81 0 >>BDw reember )T4Tc -9..334 Tc -8.6neitherember )Tj068 0 0 33d (at )Ttransfer -5.29894 42087 0 )Tf 0 >>BDbetween/T1_2.24 1.8 0 0 02 0 0 -9.38 Tc -5.298 -1. -19Td (Level )Tj 0 Tect  /SusT4Tc )Tj78.24 T2-9.8.06832 6o (:eTnd1  /SuE40 (:e ) )Tj78.24 T221.95 6832 6o (:e2 )Tj 0 Tect  /Sus457 )Tj78.24 T2S386 6832 6o (:enorember )T28 E40 (:e ) )Tj78.24 T1 0  (06832 6o (:echangc -5.29894 832 -13126 0 (Leve 191.6 Tm (1 Tc 5.11090 0 -9.38 Tc 4.103 -0.019 otal )Tj 0.0354 Tc5-37.6(usp116 .32222(Leve 1stru2.84 191.6 Tm (in )SusT995 )Tj78.24 Tm 0 )Tect )T882.72 191.6 )Sus547 )Tj78.24 T399.8.06t )T882.72both8.64 Tm (s4 (483 )TTd (aDC  -7 360.T906t )T882.72years.-5.29894 28 )Tj ET/T1638428 ) (31,scribed1  /Susp 42087 0 662 0 >>BDbelowET BT /Sus232 -1.3881 0 >>BDi 191.6 Tm (in )S -7286 )Tj78.24 T372.Td  0.8(cl2.72theember )T41-37.6(:e ) )Tj78.24 T3.3 nf  0.8(cl2.72information191.6 Tm (in )Sus2083 )Tj78.24 Tct <6f  0.8(cl2.72about91.6 )Sus2866 
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31.5 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost 

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial assets and 
financial liabilities which are 
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In estimating the fair value of investment property, management takes into account the 
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest 
and best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group's 
non-financial assets indicated above is their current use. 

There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Group during the year 
for its non-financial assets. Also, there on on 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule A 

Financial Assets - Fair Value Through Profit or Loss and Available for Sale Financial Assets 

December 31, 2017 

Amount Shown in Valued Based on 
Number of Shares or 

Name of Issuing Entity and 
Principal Amount of 

the Statement Market Quotation at Income Received 
Association of Each Issue 

Bonds or Notes 
Financial Positon as End of Reporting and Accrued (iii) 
of Reporting Period Period 

Fair Value through Pro.it of Loss (FVTPL) 

BDO Leasing 

of Leasi01 0 0 -7. -7.40.32D51 0 Td (201c 6.982 0 Td14798 Tm7227.96 Tl022136f 0 0 -7.8001 515.74 2699 -7.40016012 258 0 54-7. -7.40.32D51 0 Td (201c 6.982 0 Td1477.1 77227.96 Tl022136f 0 BT /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.028Tc -7.9009 0 0 -7.4001 537.3425880specl022OrixTj EMC  ET BT 0.05 498c -7.8001 0 0 -7.8001 515.95 14880specl022MetroTj 0.0103 Tc -693 50 Td (Peasing )Tj EM.035 Tc -6.95744 0 -7.8001 .nE686 21380specl022 >>BDC s   0 -13028 Tm (of )Tj 0.0287 Tc -8 1.5580s1 -7. -2,230,619,82)Tj /T1373150.02963d (201,230,619,82)Tj /T 0 -3Tc -7137330 Td (or1,230,619,82)Tj /T BT /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.043682c -7.8001 0 0 -7.8001 515395472139551-1302(FinarstTj EMC  ET BT 0.05 498c -7.8001 0 0 -7.8001 515.95 12)T39551-1302(FiMetroTj 0.0102 Tc -793 70 Td (QuInvestnt )Tj 0. BT /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.043143028 Tm (of )Tj 0.0287 Tc45608  0 39551-1302(FiCorp.Tj EMC  /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  -0.035 Tc 3..954of )Tj 0.954of )435.6)T39551onf 0 >>BDC s  -7.90uspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  /T1_1 4 Tf 0.0c -7.719 BDO BDO (iii) BDO 



Name 

ABEGAJL VICE.",'TE 

ABNER CATACUTAN 

ADRIA.N KUCZMIK 
.ALBERTO DACUMA 

.ALEJANDRO MA.NALO 
A.LEX.ANDER UM.ALI 
.ALFREDO C. CASASJS 

ALLAN L. V .ALENZUELA 
.ALLES.ANDRA FAY .ALBAJUCO 

ALMA GARCIA 

ALVIN ESGUERRA 
ALVIN SOGUJLON 

AL VIN TORRES 
ALY.ANA GRACE T. ROBL.EZA 

ANA UZA MANI.AP AZ 
ANDREW ACQUAAH H.ARRJSON 

A.'1GEU A. CA.DOR.NA 

A.NGEUCA FERRER 
A.'INA BHEL SJBUG 
ANNA KA.'IBNINA M. SALGADO 

ARCEL V. GUINOCOR 

AROilllALD GARCIA 
ARGIE C. GL.ENOGO 
ARIA ROS.AR.JO NOGRAL.ES 

ARIEL MAGU!GAD 

ARIES BACUAJON 
ARMANDO A. TRASADO 

.AlU,lANDO MANAOG 

ARM.ARIE A. BORDEN 

A.RNOL.D G. ANACAYA 
A.RNOL.D I. VJI..l.AFUERTE 

A.RNOL.D R. B.ASISTER 

ARON B. OGATIA 
ARSENIO P. SENO 

A VJGAEL M.•.NINGO 

BA.NAG, AUDREY PRESA 

BEJIE VILLON 
BE.'1A KRJSTIE S. UDQU!N 

BE.NJMUN R DEL.A CRUZ 

BENJAf.!IN S. FABROA,JR. 

BENJAMIN VICENTE JR. 
BRYA."l BALISI 

BRYAN R. MAL.INAO 
Bl.ffQl CASTILLO 
CAMELO BASCO 

CARLOS L. TRECE 
CARLOS L.EITAO 
CARLOS TRECE 
CAROUNE JE.ANEL C. LOPEZ 
CAIBERINE C. CE."lA 

CAIBERINE U:M 
CELSO C. ANCHETA 

CEZAR V. MAYHAY 
CH.ARMA.INE DE LEON ESPINO 

CHARTON BENZUL.ANO 
CHERYM.AYT. DETORRES 

CHITO Bll.OG 
CHRISTIAN A.L.JSA."lDAO 

CHR.JSTIAN JOSEPH ARGOS 
CHR.JSTINE CR.ISO S . .ANGELES 

CHRISTINE CR.ISOL A.NGELES 

CHR.ISTOPHER L. RUADO 

CHR.ISTOPHER PAGA 

CL.AR.ISSA CABA.I.DA 
CL.AUDIA SOR.I.ANO 

CR.ESANTO M. CASTRO 

CRlSA.'ITO BERTOLDO 

CR.ISANTO CALOS 

CR.ISA.'ITO LA.BE JR. 
CR.ISM.AR MENDEZ 

CR.ISTINE A. FORTUNO 

CYRlEL A. GAROL.ACAN 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule B 

Bala.nee at Beginning of 
Period 

8,447 

146,500 

1,238 

155,000 

4,500 

12,500 

10,000 

32,000 

94,400 

3,241 

147,232 

30,000 

32,000 

906,804 

3,360 

102,873 

119,690 

220,000 

4,400 

141,604 

20,000 

3,000 

15,449 

100 

7,500 

6,000 

2,259,322 

127,862 

26,895 

2,000 

182,396 

50,000 

32000 

70M 

1,800 

7,109 

1,550 

14,400 

10,000 

9,000 

16,208 

29 

168,935 

4,830 

5237938 

Amount, Receivable &om Directors, Officcn, Employcc11 

Related Parties and Principal Stockholdcra (Other than Related Partie,) 
December 31, 2017 

Addition• 

7,400 p 

798 

1,920 

460,796 

9,316 

1,445 

1,408 

18,974 

2400 

3,185 

2,400 

2,388 

1,440 

100,000 

2,238 

219,201 

14,025 

195,590 

28,833 

1,550 

2,000 

338 

32,000 

9,600 

1,550 

1,550 

975 

2,000 

30,833 

1,650 

Deduction, 

Amount• Collected Written Off 

10,000 

99,130 

279,007 

4,830 

1157 803 =-p ------'3=92=9=67 

Currcut Non-current 

7,400 P 

8,447 

147,298 

1,238 

155,000 

4,500 
12,500 

1,920 

32,000 

94,400 

3,241 

147,232 

30,000 

32,000 

1,367,600 

9,316 

1,445 

3,360 

102,873 

1,408 

138,664 

2,400 

220,000 

4,400 

3,185 

2,400 
42,474 

20,000 

2,388 

3,000 

15,449 

1,440 

100 
100000 

2,199,516 

50,000 

10,557 

28,208 

14,025 
127,862 

26,895 

2,000 

195590 

182,396 

50,000 

32,000 

7,000 

1,800 

7,109 

1,550 

28,833 

1,550 

14,400 

10,000 

2,000 

338 

32,000 

9,600 

9,000 

16,208 

29 

168,935 

1,550 1,800 

7,005(3,360 80)Tj EMC  ET Buspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0313 Tc -4 0 0 -4 10.05 Tc -4.01 25 Td (52 0j EMC  ETT BT 0.0291 Tc -4 0 0 -4 176.1801 450.2601 Tm  0 -4549.9MC  /Sus60 Tm (1,.18012 (13 )Tj T10 0 -6038 0 0 -4 180.82)Tj332.72 Tm (1EMC  56 )Tj EMC  /000 7ect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0272 Tc -4 0 0 /T1_0 EMCf -4 1764.3001 178.8901 374.3 Tm 0 )j EMC 0.1,585 T97 0 -End.05 Tc -4.0152 0 0 -4 170.8805 T971 374.3 Tm83j 3EMC 0.1EMC 0. (52132Tj EMC  /S7spect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0471 Tc -4 0 0 -4 2Td (1,5300 )Tj ET BT 8BT 7t <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0471 Tc -4 0 0 -4 2524.300,5597)Tj 0.0327 T47,178.0175 Tc -4 0 0 -4 1790.05 Tc -4.01 Tm 3 Tm 0 9,0004 176.0801 (10 )Tj EMC  E9,31.342 -/Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0335 Tc -4 0 0 -4 066.3401 497.0601T6T2j EM2330 0 -4. ET BT 5t <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0205 Tc 0.54 -1.44 T,005(3,3057 )Tj ET BT 3,360.0287 Tc -4 0 0 -4 152.6801 403.64018MCTj EM244,550 21 497.0601T6T(2,19262)Tj EMC  E2BT -4 0 0 -4 178.340-4 175.6801 403.64018MCT2,19268T2j EMC  E22Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0424 Tc -4 0 0 -4 151d (21 497.0601T6T(52192Tj j EMC  ET BT -4 0 0 -4 178.340-4 092.3401 497.0601T6T184192T9.9M0 -1.483,18585 -1.44 Td (2,000 )Tj ET BT /Su4D (9,0004 2 -4.30051637)Tj 0.0327 4Su47ect <<-4 178.5801,000380)Tj EMC  ETSuspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0424 Tc -4 0 0 -4 272.3401 497.0601T6T164193 )Tj88EMC  E2Bj88t <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.0205 Tc 0.54 -1.44 T,005(0 -480)Tj 2T BT 3,T 0.0175 Tc -4 0 0 -4 138.3401 497.0601T7 9,0004 062Td (1,54 )Tj ET BT /9BT 0.0287-4 138.34011,557 
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MEGAWJDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Schedule B 
Amounu Receivable &om Dirccton, Officcn, Emp1oycc1 1 

Related Partic1 and Principal Stockboldcn (Othernf 0 >>BDC  0.0121 Tc -4.3001 0 0 -4.3003 l1 Tf 0.0369 Tc 697ct <ect <</Conf 4u1.6427155 cm /.42 75.5 T 7Tc 5GEn126 81.26 Tm (Related )Tj ET BT /Suspect <</Conf 0 >>BDC  0.252427155 cm /.42 75.5 T 7Tc,Grccton, 



.5. 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule B 

Amount• Receivable from Dirccton1 Officcn, Employee,, 
Related Partic• and Principal Stockholdcn (Other than Related Putic1) 

December 31, 2017 

Name Balance at End of Period Addition• 
Deduction, Endia Balance 

Balance at End of Period 
Amounu Collected WrittcnOfJ Cuncnt Non•cuncnt 

ui-, unild fa,-,d 12,323,151 3,345,296 463,762 p 15,204,686 p 15,204,686 

MARKJOSEPH T. OBO 15,527 15,527 15,527 

MARK LESTER T. GAU.EPOSO 14,100 14,100 14,100 

MARK U.OYD A. RAMIREZ 1,550 1,550 1,550 

MARK NJEVERA 5,500 39,755 45,255 45,255 

MARK ROCAFORT 440 440 440 

MARK U. VJLLAGONZALO 3,273 3,273 3,273 

MARLA REMEDIOS .A VILA 33,524 33,524 33,524 

MARRY CHRISM.ARP .A 184,404 645 185,049 185,049 

MARTIN MIGUEL FLORES 2,400 2,400 2,400 

MARTIN SIMON GJORDA-'l 18,411 18,411 18,411 

M.',.RVIN GLORIA 10,489 10,489 10,489 

MARVIN M. ENCARNACION 1,650 1,650 1,650 

MARY .ANN Z.AC.ARJ.AS 65,000 65,000 65,000 

MARY GR.ACE GONZAGA 41,600 41,600 41,600 

MARY HILD.AR. SERR.ANO 1,162 1,162 1,162 

M.ARYJOYF.AM! 45,292 41,600 86,892 86,892 

MARY JOYS. FAMl 41,600 41,600 41,600 

MARY ROSE HOPE PATRICIO 963 963 963 

MARYCON S.ALAZ.AR 1,905 1,905 1,905 

MELCHOR T. TORRES 0 0 0 

MELCHOR V. HERRERA 1,650 1,650 1650 

MELlSSA P. DAVID 140,000 32,000 172,000 172000 

MELON.A E. D.ABLO 891 891 891 

MELVIN GRAY E. DELA CRUZ ,2Mfl 

MELVIN LOZANO 13,500 1 ssn 

MENCHIE 0. D!ASEN 32,000 32,0C-0 32,000 

ME.RLINDO D.Jr. TAYRUS 1,655 1,655 

MIA GR.ACE P .AUL.AS. CORTEZ 53,367 53,367 5 

MICHELE A. B.ARROZO 10,000 10,000 1 

MISCHIEL U. ENRIQUEZ 36,905 36905 

MOTHIL.AL 3,800 3.aOO 

NELSON LEG.ARDE 150,000 15 

NELSON M. CASADO 17640 17,640 1 

NEMl.A M. CORILLA 500,000 354,167 854,167 8' 

NESTOR C . .ABRIAL 6,563 = 6,563 

NESTOR L S!ERVO JR 20,117 20,117 

NICANOR NICKIE B . .ARENAS 13,875 13,875 1 

NIKKO F. DEL ROSARIO 7,609 7,609 

NIJ'lO DELOS REYES 28,485 28,485 28,485 

NOE G. GER.APUSO 1,027 1,027 l.027 

NOEL C.ADIENTE 1,550 1,550 '""' NONILON F. MUDLONG 1,650 1,650 H<n 

NORMAN N. ESCOBAR 77,000 58,750 135.750 

NORM.AN RESURECCION 3,000 3.000 3,000 N .  

GER.APUSO 3,000 
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MEGA WIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule B 

Amountl Receivable from Dirccton, Officers, Employcct1 

Related Pattie, and Principal Stockholdcn (Other than Related Partica) 
December 31, 2017 

Deduction, Endln Balance 
Name BaJancc at End of Period Addition, 

Amount• Collected WritteBalance 

Pattie, Pattie, Pattie, 
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TOTAL ADVANCES TO 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule E 

Long-Term Debt 
December 31, 2017 

Amount Shown Under 
Amount Shown Under 

Caption" Current 
Caption" Long-Term 

Title of Issue and Type of Amount Authorized Portion of Long-term 
Debt" in Related 

Obligation by Indenture Debt" in Related 
Statement of 





Title of Issue 

Common 

Preferred 

-13-

MEGAWIDE 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 
2nd Floor Spring Building, Amaiz Avenue Cor. P. Burgos St., Pasay City 
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 

For Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings of the Parent Company at Beginning of Year 

Prior Periods' Outstanding Reconciling Item 

Deferred tax income 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for 

Dividend Declaration at Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 

Net Profit of the Parent Company Realized During the Year 
Net profit per audited financial statements 
Non-actual/ unrealized income 

Deferred tax income 

Other Transaction During the Year 
Cash dividends to common and preferred shareholders 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for 

Dividend Declaration at End of Year 

P 4,505,742,603 

209,392,198) 

4,296,350,405 

1,238,931,282 

38,641,062) 

387,928,875) 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations 

Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the 
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2017 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements ,/ 

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics ,/ 

Practice Statement Management Commentary 

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) 

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
,/ 

PFRS1 time Adopters 

(Revised) Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for 
,/ 

First-time Adopters 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Deletion of Short-term Exemptions ,/ 

Share-based Payment 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations 
PFRS2 Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions* (ejfective January 1, 2018) 

PFRS3 
Business Combinations ,/ 

(Revised) Amendment to PFRS 3: Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests in a Joint Operation* 
(effective January 1, 2019) 

Insurance Contracts 

PFRS4 Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts 

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PFRS 4, Insurance 
Contraas* (ejfeaive January 1, 2018) 

PFRS5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 

PFRS6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

Financial Instruments: Disclosures ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition ,/ 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets ,/ 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date and 
,/ 

Transition 
PFRS7 Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures Transfers of Financial Assets ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities ,/ 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures* 
(effeaive when PFRS 9 is first applied) 

PFRS 8 Operating Segments ,/ 

Financial Instruments (2014)* (effeaive January 1, 2018) 

PFRS9 Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation* 
(effeaiveJanuary 1, 2019) 

Not Not 
Adopted Applicable 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted 
Not Not 

Adopted Applicable 

Consolidated Financial Statements ./ 

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance ./ 

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities ./ 
PFRS 10 

Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Schedule of Relevant Financial Ratios as Required 

Under SRC Rule 68, as amended 
December 31, 2017 

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos) 

2017 2016 2015 ~ ~ -3Q!L_ 

I. Cum:nt/liquidity ratios 

.. CurtentRatio 

Total Cuttent Assets p 18,699,144,368 p 20,971,309,420 p 22,495,456,946 1.99 1.83 1.78 

Total Current Llabilities 9,413,231,733 11,458,671,534 12,647,217,338 

b. Quick Ratio 

(Cash and Cash Equivalents + Financial 

Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

+ Trade and Other Receivables) 14,668,173,258 15,867,826,197 17,068,432,025 1.56 1.38 1.35 

Total Current Llabilities 9,413,231,733 11,458,671,534 12,647,217,338 

II. Solvency ratios 

.. Solvency Ratio 

(After Tax Net Profit+ D:ereciation) 2,943,773,745 2,523,835,174 2,002,423,868 0.08 O.o? 0.06 

Total Liabilities 36,282,371,536 34,875,019,710 31,910,630,827 

b. Debt-to-Equity Ratio 

28,948,468,341 25,762,663,979 22,542,400,194 1.60 1.59 1.36 

18,135,444,269 16,209,535,128 16,604,203,384 

c. Net Debt-to-Equity Ratio 

Total Interest-bearing loans· Cash· Financial Assets at 
FVPL 20,808,047,583 14,824,327,187 13,279,424,246 1.15 0.91 0.80 

Total Equity 18,135,444,269 16,209,535,128 16,604,203,384 

m. AHet-to-equity ratio 

Total Assets 54,417,815,805 51,084,554,838 48,514,834,211 3.00 3.15 2.92 

Total Equity 18,135,444,269 16,209,535,128 16,604,203,384 

IV. Asset-to-liability ratio 

54,417,815,805 51,084,554,838 48,514,834,211 1.88 1.98 2.15 

28,948,468,341 25,762,663,979 22,542,400,194 

v. Interest Coverage Ratio 

~in!!:! Before Intetest and Taxes) 3,475,686,103 2,977,867,935 2,479,080,371 5.36 4.88 4.63 

Interest Expense 648,827,704 609,859,688 535,572,202 

VI. Pro!59,688 
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MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 

Schedule of Preferred Shares Proceeds 

Under SRC Rule 68, as amended 

December 31, 2017 

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos) 

Preferred Shares Proceeds 
Less: Issuance related expenses 
Underwriter fees 
Professional fees 
Registration and taxes 
Bank charges 

Net Preferred Shares Proceeds 

Less: Disbursements 
Mactan-Cebu International Airport 
Public School Infrastructure Project (PSIP) Phase II 
Southwest Integrated Transport System 
Project Development of Renewable Energies 
Regional Prison Facilities 

Privatization of Airports 

Balance of Preferred Shares Proceeds as of December 31, 2017 

p 

p 

53,598,978 

5,189,714 
2,535,625 

201,400 

984,173,963 

442,878,283 
492,086,981 

31,775,537 
23,962,320 

110,542,554 

p 4,000,000,000 

61,525,717 

3,938,474,283 

2,085,419,638 

p 1,853,054,645 
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